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DEED OF ASSIGNMENT OF LEASE

THIS DEED is made an 2020
PARTIES
1 COBAR SHIRE COUNCIL (ABNM 71 579 717 155} of 36 Linsley Street, Cabar NSW 2835
{the “Lassor™)
2. ANVERA PTY LIMITED {(ACN 010 557 463) of 11 Timothy Court, Jones Hill QLD 4570
{the "Assignor"}
3. COBAR HOLIDAY PARK PTY LTD {ACN 645 180 248) of Level 7, 420 King Willliam
Sireet, Adelaide SA 5000

(the "Assignea"}
RECITALS
A The Lessor leasad to the Assignor the Premises at the annuai rent for the term and subject

to the covenants, conditions and sfipulations of the Lessa and any opfion to renew
contained in the Lease.

E. The Lease contains, inter alia, a covenant on the part of the Lesses not to assign or part
with or otherwise deal with its interest in the Demised Premises other than in accordance
with the provisions of tha Laase.

C. The Assignor and the Assignee have requssted the Lessor to consent to the assignment
by the Assignor fo the Assignee of the intarest of the Assignor I the Lease fogsther with
all fhe residue of the now unexpirad fenm under the Lease.

D. The Lessor has agreed to consent fo the assignment on the terms and provisions of this
Deaad.

WITNESSES

1. DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION
1.1 In this Deed:-

"Assignor” means the party set out under iierm 1 of the Schedule;
"Agsignes” means the perty set out under ltem 2 of the Schedule;

"Demiged Premises™ means the premlses set oui under ltem 3 of the
Schedute;

“Effective Date” meens 2020;

"Lessor" means the party set out under Item 4 of the Schadule;

“Lease" means the lease set out under item 5 of the Schedule {as variad by
this Deed);

1
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1.2

In this Deed unless the coniext otherwise requires:-

{a) refarance to a pareon includes any other entlty recognised by law and
vice versa,

(i words Impoerting the singular number include the plural number and
vice verss;

(c) words importing one gender inciude avery gender;

{d) any reference to any of the parties by their defined terms Includes

that party's executors, adminlstrators or permitted assigns or, being a
company, its successors or permitted assigns;

{en every agreemant or undertaking expressed or Impiisd by which mora
than one person agress or undertakas any obligation or derives any
benefit binds or Inures for the benefit of thoze perscns jointly and
each of them saverally,

i) clause headings ars for reference purposes only;
ig) reference to gn Item s a reference to an ltem in the Schedule to this
Ceed.
ASSIGNMENT

21

On arkl from the Effective Date the Assignor as beneficial owner assfgns o the
Assignes absclutely, the Asslgnor's right tile and interest In the Lease for the
unexplred term of the Leasa in accordance with this Deed.

ASSIGNEE'S COVENANTS

31

3.2

The Assignee covensnts with the Lessor to psy rent and to observe the
Assignor's obligations under the Lease for tha balance of the term of the Laase
and during any varlation or extension of the term cf the Lease,

The Assighee covenants with the Assignor fo ohserve and perform the iessee's
obligations under the Leass for the balance of the term of the Lease and during
any varation or extension of the term of the Lease and to mdamnify the
Assignor in respect of any ligbility to the Lessor under the Lease,

LESSOR'S CONSENT

4.1

The Lessor consents ta the assignment of the Leass and acknowledges that no
event that has occurred, nor any past or subsisting breach by the Assignor of
any lease covenant or obligation will be relied upon by the Lessar against the
Asslghee which would entltie the Lessor to terminate the Lease or to refuse to
grant any option far renewal.

RELEASE

4



5.1 The Assignor is released by the Lessor frorm any firther fabilliy under the Lease
for the perlod after the date of the Assignment of the Leasa to the Assignes.

52 The Assigrior hersby relegses and discharges the Lassor from all claims,
demands, debts, accounts, expensas, costs, llens and proceedings of any
nature whatsoever which the Assignor has or might have or might assart against
the Lessor afsing from, incldental to or by virtus of, the non-compliance with the
Lease by the Lassor prior ta the Efective Date.

COSTS

6.1 Tha Assignes shall beer all costs, disbursements and stamp duties of the
Lessor and the mortgagee of the Premises in relation o the preparation,
execution and stamgpling of this Dead.

COUNTERPARTS

7.1 This Dead rmay consist of a number of counterpans and the counterparts taken
together constitute one and the same ingtrument.
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EXECUTED as a dead

EXECUTED by COBAR SHIRE COUNCIL
{ABMN 71 579 717 155) |n accordance with a
resolution of Councll dated day of

2020 by:

Signatura of Genaral Manager

Name of Genseral Manager

EXECUTED by ANVERA PTY LIMITED
(ACN 010 557 463) in accordance with
Section 127 Corporations Act, 2004

Director

Name

EXECUTED by COBAR HOLIDAY PARK
PTY LTD {ACN 645 180 249} in accordance
with Section 127 Corporations Act, 2001

Director

Name

51
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Signature of Witness
MName of Withess
)
)
)
Director
P Dineen
Mama
)
)
)
Qirector
Natashs | ouise Tovey

Nama



SCHEDULE

Hem 1 The Assignor
ANVERA PTY LIMITED {ACN 010 557 463) of 11 Timothy Court, Jones Hill QLD 4570.

tem 2 The Assignee

COBAR HOLIDAY PARK FTY LTD (ACN 645 130 248) of Level 7, 420 King Wiliam Street,
Adelalde 5A 5000,

Iteim 3 Damised Premises
Tha Land in Folio Identifier 1/1004848 (formerly 317/755649) and part of the land & Folio [dantifiar

273755649 being tha premises known as Cobar Caravan Park.

hesn 4 Lessor

COBAR SHIRE COUNCIL (ABN 71 579 717 155} of 36 Linsley Streef, Cobar NSW 2835.

fem & Leage

l.ease betwesn the Lessor and the Assignor for 2 tarm of ten (10) years commencing on 1 November
2011 and terminating on 31 October 2021.
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Cobar Shire Council

SPECIAL SCHEDULES
for the year ended 30 June 2020
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Cobar Shire Council

Special Schedules
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Contents

Special Schedules

Permissible income for general rates
Report on Infrastructure Assets - Values
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Cobar Shire Council

Permissible income for general rates

Netional general income calculation '
Lasl yaar noticnal general Income yiald

Plug or minus adjustmants £

Notional general income

Permissible Income calculation
Or rale peg percentage

Or plus rale peg amount
Sub-total

Flug (or minus) last year's carry forward tolal
Sub-total

Total permissible income

Less noticnal general income yield
Catch-up or fexcess) resull

Carry forward to next year

Notes

lnt=s

=EE 0+ 0]

h=imegshn+it

Special Schedides 2020

Calculation Caleulation
2020/21 2079/20
4,050 4010
14 1G5
4,064 4.026
2.60% 2.70%
T0E 108
4170 4,134
= (84)

= {B4)
4170 4050
4168 4,050

i1 The rational general income will nal reconsile with rate Inoome |0 the financial statements in the coresponding year. The stelements are
reported on an actrual accounting basiswhich inciude smeunts that relste [o priod yaars' rates income.

= Adjustmanis sccoun! for changas in the number of assessimeniz and any ncrease of decresta in l2nd valie ocouring duing he year
The adlustments are salied 'supplemenlany valu_allnlu' ag dalined in the Yalualion of Land Act 1916,

i Carry forward amounts which ane in axcess (an amount that exizaadls the permissible income) reaulre ministerlal appeoval by ordap
published in tha MEW Govermment Gazette in accordance wilh saction 512 of the Losal Goyommant Al 1983, The QLG will extras)
these gmounts from Councll's Permissible nsome Tor general rtes Statament In the financial data retuen (FOR) Lo admintster this

OCess;
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Cobar Shire Council Special Schadules 2020

Report on Infrastruciure Assets

asal 30 June 2020
‘Estimated cost o bring to the Assels in condition as a percentage of
Asset Class  Asset Category fo bring assets agreed fevel of 207820 201820 Gross gross reglacement cost
to satisfactory sorvice set by Reguired’ Actuzl  Netcarrylng  replscement 1 2 3 4 5
standadrd Council mainfenanice *  malnferanco amount  cost (GRG)
(a) Report on Infrastructure Assets - Values
Bulldings Buildings 2,815 11,574 580 324 22266 42 587 120% 120% 49.0% 220% 50%
Sub-otal 2,915 11,574 580 324 22,256 42587  12.0% 12.0% 49.0% 22.0% 5.0%
Other Qther sirliclures . e __ -+ 44 845 1493 00% 380% 50% 570% 00%
sfructures Sub-total 152 8586 - B4 845 1,493 0.0% 38.0% 50% 57.0% 0.0%
Roads Sealed roads 3,584 15478 1,240 1.415 22.2Mm MBA04  48.0% 18.0% 21.0% 11.0% 2.0%
Unsealed roads 1,118 6,386 1,630 1,444 134,756 147157  9.0% 36.0% 510% 40% 00%
Bridges. - - 20 - 4,116 5,591 00%  7RO% 21.0% 00% 0.0%
Footpaths 44 252 60 2 2,368 2875 1500 4008 3BOW BO% 1.0%
Other road assets 5 131 748 190 - 11857 18612 10% 40% 910% 40% 00%
Sub-total 4877 22 862 3,040 2,861 245,277 295,639  244% 2T 40.6% 6.8% 0.8%
Water supply Water supply network 2,566 4,463 770 584 21,904 40580  2B0% 60% §50% 00% 11.0%
network Sub-total 2,566 4,453 TTa 584 21,904 40,690 28.0% 6.0% 550% 0.0% ._._.E.m-
Sewerage  Seweragenstwork 4 23 280 _ 2/@ 11163 20,157  00% 8% 720% 0% O0%
network Sub-total 4 23 280 279 11,169 20,157 0.0% 27.8% T20% D1% 0.0%
Stormwater  Stonmwater drainage - = = 70 = 4,876 8,022 70% 390% 540% 00% 0.0%
drainage Sub-total = = 70 =3 4 976 8,022 T.0% 38.0% 54.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Open space | SWwimming pools 44 251 120 - 3,145 2816 500  0.0% BBOYW BO% 00%
recreational Other 12 O 140 418 1518 2238 0% 200% 410% 20% 0.0%
assels: Sub-total 56 | 260 416 4,663 5,054 16.5% 11.5% 66.1% 59% 0.0%
TOTAL - ALL ASSETS 10,570 40,099 5,000 4,548 311,090 413842  21.6% 24.0% 448% 74% 22%

) Reguined maintsnance is the m:._uc_.in.maﬁnu..n._ Councll's asset managemsant plans.

Infrastructire assel condition assessment 'key'

1 Excellentivery good Mo worlk required (normal maintenance)
2 Good Only minor maintenance work required
3  Salisfactory Maintenance work required

conlindead on nexl phge Tgmh..ﬁmm
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Cobar Shire Coungil

Report on Infrastructure Assets - Values (continued)
as at 30 Jurw 2020

4 Poor Renewal requira:
5  Very paor Urgent renewaliupgrading required

coentinuad on next page ...

Spmclal Schadules 2020

Pageaof 8
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Cobar Shire Council Special Schedules 2020

Report on Infrastructure Assets (continued)

as gl 30 June 2020
Amotnts  Indicator Prior periods Benchimark
5 '000 2020 2020 2018 2018
Infrastructure asset performance
indicators (consolidated) -
Bulldings and infrastruciure rengwals ratio
Assel rerewals * 3,979 . L ’ _
Depraciation, arorisalon and Ipai 5518 T211% 4331%  240% =>=100.00%

infrastructure backlog ratio *

Estimated cost to bring assets fo a satisfactory

standard 10,570 3409  244% 1.79% <2.00%
Met carrying smount of infrastruciure assels 311,090

Aesel malntenance ratic
Actual asset maintenance 4,548
Required assat maintenance 5,000

90.96% 86.2% 10B.08%  >100.00%

Cost to bring mssets fo agreed service laval
Estimated costto bring assets to

an agreed service level set by Council 40,098 g gow;, 2.78% 2 B
Gross replacemant cost 413,642

'V AR mesel performants nditslors are loulaied using plesses idenfified in the pravious =bie
i1 Eseludes Wark, In Progress (WP

(2 Agsel renewals represent the replacameant andior refurbtshment of axisting assets 12 an sguivalent capooity/performance a8 opposad o
the acquisition of new assets (or (me relurkshment of oid aseeis) thet increases oapacity/perdormance

oontinued on nesl page . Page B ol &
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Cobar Shire Council
Report on Infrastructure Assets (continued)

as at 30 June 2020
Buildings ahd infrastructure renewals ralio o o
L
Blyldics and
infrastrciore ||
1Kl —_— ranewals (Etio
" "
_.u.. i T pssiens thel bt al
...._;__-Iﬂ-ﬁhﬁﬂ
irig) erswed falal
| R ke i e
| : |- 2w dnpranialing,
a
ik 018 200 _
L — [
Bischmurk — ' Ratio achisues benchrrark

Sowice of banchmark: Codé of Accountng Praclics and Firancal Roporting #26 [l Ratio s outside bentfmiak

Infrastruciire _umn.E_ulnr-Eu . P
T
Infrastructune =
nacklog allo
F B
i s
: _
: 340 T i shoms whal ﬁﬂh.ﬂﬁz%éﬁ
propiciton (e beiog w || 00 Lo pew warks. Lol
. 743 maainst fhe foral vatuwral || o e e o
1 a Cipueife B oprpliment af stalf q!_
d h - wlrdtiichis. ralaman hin o sl Eﬂ__u:
1]
2016 019 2000

Berwhman: — w2 00 B0 Ralio nehlevey benchman

Baureis af henehmark: Cade of Accalnting Practce ana Financial Reparting 228 [l Rstio |s cutide benihiack

conlinusd o1 fexl page

Special Schedules 2020

Assel maintenanoo ratio

| Arsised
7l migltilenaRce milo

) _| T mu | s

2 W

= - e
__ e, vy } iy

Du!n.__*l!stﬂ__. _n._.ﬂ_;ﬂﬁu_. %3_“1 i
) v uiils v pirhehy b
i -BE_? Shig E_“H.Er__ raticr el e il
bachiog modig.
. 01E

2019 a0

Hanghmark: — .Ebnﬁ I Rabo achiewes benchimark

Sourts of bonchmark: Coda of Accounting Practicn and Financlal Repordng 428 [l Rabo is outside benchmark

ﬂm.ﬂ.wn bring assols to mm.._.ﬁanlgmnn leval R

2 T4
m Thig i previces a
_ = sripretice of fh= & mmfue plunming euers wil Se
. . propainn af ‘eondusded i BIA0RET i balsie
) oulglandany fenewal renedval ard o weehs, Uil an
143 wirhs compired bl st MrnBgur s AppeArig Bl &
o it il o nesils Flah cxabeallitid of AR e b
noer Coingile cans - eetinirasd hid rstio wit ke wolotie

2010 o ||
| E——
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g f 5 i Sehodules 2020
Cobar Shire Council e

Report on Infrastructure Assets (continued)
as at 30 June 2020

General fund Water fund : Sewer fund Benchmark
5 '6o0 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2018

Infrastructure asset performance indicators (by
fund)

Buildinges and Infrastructurs renewals ratio

Assat ranewals .
- 5 48,79 M ¥ | { e = i
Deprecialion, amrisation and \pai ; B8.54% BT 0.00% (O, 0.00% (3 0y ==100.00%

Infrastructure backlog ratio
Eslimatad cost 1o bring assefs (o a satisfactory standard

8 2.0 ik 5 G, .04 iy,
Nat carrying amount of frirastruciure assals 2.86% 2% 1M1.71% 8.96% 0.04% 0.43 <2.00%
Asgal maintennnce ratlo
Aol esed TR anGe 93.29% §0.20% 75.84%  12021% 99.64%  15833%  >100.00%

Required asset malntenancs

Cost te bring assels to agreed service jevel

Estimated cost to bring assels lo an agreed service leval set by

Coungil 10.09% 8.37% 10.97% 19.40% 0.11% 0,85%
Gross replacement cost

1% Excludes Work I Progress (WIF}

¥ Assel redewals represant lhe mplacement ahdior relurbishmenl of exisiing assels (o an squivalent capacilyfperiormande - 85 opposed o the aoquisiticn of new assets (or the refurishmont of old assefs) that
incresees capacitypeformence.

Page 8ol B



Cobar Shire Council

SPECIAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2020
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Cobar Shire Council

Special Puposs Financial Statements 2020

Special Purpose Financial Statements
far the year ended 30 Juns 2020

Contents Page

Statement by Councillors & Management 3

Special Purpose Financial Statements

income Statement — Water Supply Business Activity 4
Income Statement — Sewerage Business Activity 5
Statement of Financial Position — Water Supply Business Activity B
Staterment of Financial Position — Sewerage Business Activity 7
Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies 8
Auditor's Report on Special Purpose Financial Statements 11

Background

L

These Special Purpose Financial Stalements have been prepared for the use by both Counll and (he Oifice of Local
Government in flfiling thetr requirements under National Compatition Policy.

The principle of competiive neutrality |s based on the concept of a level playing field’ between personsiantities competing
in a markel place. particularly betwaen private and public sector competitors,

Essentially, the principie is that government businesses. whather Commaonwealth, stale ar local, should operate without
net competitive advantages over other businesses as a rasult of ther public awnership,

For Council, the principle of compstiive nautrallly end public reporting applies enly to declared business activities.
Thess include (8) those activities classified by the Australian Bureau of Siatistics as business activities being water
supply, sewerage sefvices, abalioirs, gas production and raticulation, and (b) thoss activities with a tumaover of more
thian 52 million that Council has formally declared as & business aclivity (dsfined as Category 1 activities.

In pregaring these financial statemeints for Council's seli-classified Category 1 businesses and ABS-defined activities,
councils must (&) adopt a corporabisation model and (b)) apply full cos! attribution including tax-equivatent regime

payments and debl guarantee fees (where the business benefits fram Council's borrowing position by compansan with
commarcial rates),

Page 2 of 11
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CDDEI’ Shire CDUHC” Spetial Purposs Financial Siatements 2020

Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Statement by Councillars and Management made pursuant to the Local Governmant Code of
Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting

The attached Special Purpose Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with:
+  the NSW Government Policy Statement ‘Application of Nalional Competition Policy to Local Govermiment',
+ the Dlvision of Local Government Guldelines 'Pricing and Costing for Coungll Businesses — A Guide to Competitive
Newtrality,
+  the Local Govemment Cade of Accounting Praclice and Financlal Reporting,
¢ the NSW Office of Water Best-Practice Masnagement of Water and Sewerage Guidalings,
To the best of our knowledge and belief, these statements;
«  prasenttairly the operating result and financial posiion for each of Councll's declarsd business activities for tha year, and
« accord with Council's accounting and other records,
+  present overhead reallocation charges to the water and sewerage businesses as lair and reasanable.
Wa are not aware of any maiter that would render these statements false or misteading In any way.

Signad in accordance with a resclution of Council made on 27 August 2020,

S 0 Phadl L a g
/ﬁ’ /12.‘ j K S

Lilligrme Brady Pt Abbati
Mayor Councillar
20 October 2020 I Detobar 2020

Petar WVialko
Genaral Managor
20 Cetoher 2020 20 Getober 2000

Page 3 of 11
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Cobar Shire Council

Income Statement — Water Supply Business Activity

for the year ended 30 June 2020
§ 000

Income fram continuing operations

Access charges

User charges

Faes

Interest

Grantz and contributions provided for non-capital puposes
Total income frem continuing operatians

Expenses from continuing operations
Employee bansfits and on-costs

Nateriats and contracls

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment

Total expenses from continuing operations

Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations before capital amounts

Grants and contributions provided for capital purposes
Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations after capital amounts

Surplus [deficit) from all operations before tax
SURPLUS (DEFICIT) AFTER TAX

Plus atcumulated surplus
Plus adjustments for amounts unpald:
Closing accumulated surplus

Return on capital %
Subsidy from Council

Calculation of dividend payable:

Surplus (deficit) after tax

Less: capital grants and contributions (excluding developer contributions)
Surplus for dividend calculation purposos

Potential dividend calculated from surplus

B4

Spatial Purpose Financial Stalsments 2020

2020 2018
287 754
2178 2318
= 2

35 54

BE 56
2,087 3,182
354 360
2A37 273
T 271
3,562 3384
{875} (182}
_ PBs4 A,836
1,909 6,454
1,909 6,454
1,809 6,454
24914 184861
2R.823 24 415
1401% (0.B)%:
1,191 478
1,909 B 454
(2 Ba4) (B,638)
Prgedaf 11



Cobar Shire Council

Income Statement — Sewerage Business Activity
for the year ended 30 June 2020

£ 000

Income from continuing operations

Accass changes

Fees

Interast

Granls and contributions provided for non-capital purposes
Total income from continuing operations

Expenses from continuing operations

Employee benefits and on-cosls

Malerials and contracts

Depreciation, amortisatlon and impairment

Total expenses from continuing cperations

Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations before capital amounts

Grants and contributions provided for capital purposes
Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations after capital amounts

Surplus {deficit) from &all oparations before tax
SURPLUS (DEFICIT) AFTER TAX

Plus accumulated surplus
Closing accumiilated surplus

Return on caplital %
Subsidy from Council

Calculation of dividend payable:

Surplus (defictt) after tax

Less: capital grants and contributions (exclhuding devaiopar contribulions)
Surplus for dividend calculation purposas

Potential dividend calculated from surplus

B5

Sperial Purpose Financial Statéments 2020

2020 2018
856 gev
14 56
35 48
= =2 —
805 948
144 132
586 551
254 363
054 1,048
(Fa) [104)
152 B
53 (34)
53 |34)
53 (34)
3,818 3,850
3,869 3818
(07 {0.97%
180 252
53 (34}
{132) _les)
Page Saf 11



Cobar Shire Council

Special Purpose Financial Statemsnts 2080

Statement of Financial Position — Water Supply Business Activity

as at 30 June 2020
$ '000
ASSETS

Currant assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables

Inventorias

Total current asseis

Non-current assals
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
Total nen-current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Currznt llabilities
Fayahles

Total gurrent llabllities

TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS

EQUITY
Acoumulated surplus
Revalualion resarves

TOTAL EQUITY

2020 2019
2,953 303

520 691

= 118

3AT3 3,820
24 504 _ 22421
£4.504 22421
Zar 26,243
282 663

282 GE3
28 63
27695 25580
26,823 24,915
_Bf2 @65
27695 25580
PagaGof 11



Caobar Shire Council

Statement of Financial Position —

as at 30 June 2020
§ ‘000

ASSETS

Current assels

Cash and cash squivalants
Recevables

Total current assets

MNen-currenl assets
Infrastructure, property, plant and egqUipment
Total non-current assels

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Current liabilitles
Payables

Total current liabllities

TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS

EQUITY
Accumulated surplus
Revaluation reserves

TOTAL EQUITY

Special Purpose Finandisl Slalemants 2020

Sewerage Business Activity

2020 1%
2,837 2674
116 123
2:853 2747
1444 11.478
11,444 11,478
14397 14278
17 54
1T B4
W 54
14,380 14 222
3,860 3,816
10.511 10,408
14,380 14,222
Page 7ol 11
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Cobar Shire Council Special Purposs Finantigl Statements 2020

Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 1. Significant Accounting Policies
A slatement summarsing the supplemental accounting pelicies adopted in the preparation of the Special Purpose Financial
Statements (SFFS) for Natipnal Competition Policy (NCP) reporting purposes follows.

These financial statemants are SPFS prepared for use by Council and the Office of Local Govermimenl, For the purposas of
these stataments. the' Councll s a non-reporting not-for-profit entity.

The figures presentad in these Speclal Purpese Financlal Statements have been prepared In accordance with the recognition
and measurement criterla of relevan| Australian Aceounling Standards, other autharitative pronouncaments of the Australian
Accounting Standards Board (AASS) and Australian Accounting Interpretations.

The disclosures In these Special Purpose Financizl Statements have besn prapared in sccordance with the Local Govemment
Act 2093 (NSW), the Local Govemment (General) Regulation 2005, and the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice
and Financial Reporing.

Thie staternenis are prepared on an accruals basis, They are based on hislors costs and do not take into account changing
money values or, except where specifically stated, current values of non-currsnt assets, Certmin taxes and other costs,
appropriately described, have been imputed for the purposes of the National Competition Policy,

Thig Stedement of Financial Position includes notional assets(liabilities receivable from/payable fo Coundil's general fund. THese
halances reflect a national intra~entity funding arrengemant with the declared business activities.

National Competition Policy

Council has adopled the principle of 'competitive neutrality’ in its business activities as part of tha National Compefition Palicy
which is belng applied throughout Australia &l all levels of govemmant

The framework for its application Is set out in the-June 1986 NSW government policy statement fitled 'Application of National
Competition Policy to Lagal Governmeant'

The Pricing and Costing for Council Businesses, A Guide lo Competilive Neulrality issued by the Office of Local Government
in July 1887 has also besn adoptad.

Thie priging and costing guidelines outline the progess for jdentifying and allocating costs o activities and provide a standard
for disclosure requiremants.

These disciosures ara reflected in Council's pricing and/or financial reporting systems and include taxation equivalants, Councll
subsidies, return on Investmenls (rate of returm), and dividends paid,

Deciared business activities

I aceordanee with Pricing and Casting for Council Businesses — A Guide to Compatitive Neutrality, Council has declared that
the fallowing are to be consldarad as business adlivities:

Catagory 1
{where gross oparsting fumover s guiar 82 millian)

a. Cobar Water Supply - Watar Supply

Category 2
(whera grogs aperaling furmoier is Tass than §2 nutlion)

a. Cobar Sewerage - Sewer Supply

Monetary amounts
Amounts shown in the financial stalaments are in Australian currency and rounded lo the nearsst thousand doliars,

(i) Taxation equivalent charges

Council Is liable to pay various taxes and financial duties. Where this |s the case, they are disclosed as a cost of operations
just like all ofter costs.

conlinwed on nexl page . Paga 8 of 11
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Special Purpase Financial Staterments 2020

Cobar Shire Council

Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

However, whera Coundl does ot pay soma taxkes which are generally paid by private sector husinesses, such as income
tax, hese equivalent tax payments have been applied to all Council-nominatsd business aslivilles and are reflected in Special
Purpose Finanncial Statements.,

For the purposes of disclosing comparative information relevant to the privale seclor equivalent, the following taxation
equivalents have been applisd 1o all Councli-nominaled business activities (this does nol intlude Council's non-business
activities)!

Motional rate applied (%)

Corporste income lax rate — 27.5%

Land tay — the first $692,000 of combined |and valies altracts 0%, Fer the comblned land values in excess of $682.001 up
f 84,231,000 the rate is 1.6% + $100. For the remaining combined land value that excesds $4,231,000 a premium marginal

rate of 2.0% applies.

Payvroll tax ~ 5.45% on the value of tzxable salafies and wagas in excess of $850,000,

In gocordancs with the Department of Industry (Dol-Waler guidelines, a payment for the amount calculated as fhe
annual iax squivalent charges (excluding income tax) must ba paid from water supply and sewerage business
activities. The payment of taxation equivalent charges, refarred to in the Best Practice Management of Water Supply
and Sewer Guldelinas as a 'dividend for faxalion equivalent’, may be applied for any purpose allowed under the Act.
Achisvemnent of substantial compliance 1o the Dal-Water guidelings |s nat a prerequisite for the payment of the tax
equivaletil charges; howevear, the pavment must not excaed 53 per assessmenl

Income tax

An Income tax equivalent has been applied on the profile of the business activities.

Whilst Incomis tax is not & speciic cost for the purpose of pricing a good or service, L needs (o be taken into aceount in erms
of gssessing the rate of returm reguired on capital invested.

Accordingly, the return on capital Invested is set 2l a pre-tax level - galn/(lass) from ardinary activites before caplial amounts,
as would be applied by & private sector competitor. That |s, il should include a provision equivaient o the corporata ncome:
{8x rate, currantly 27.5%.

Incame tax s anly applied whare a aain/ (loss) froms ardinary activities before capital amounts has besn schisved.

Sinee the taxstion eguivatent is notional - that 1s, itis payable lo Council as the 'owner’ of buslness operalions - I reprasenis
an internal payment and has no effect on the operations of the Councll. Accordingly, there is no need for disclosure of internal
iharges in the SPFS.

The rate applisd of 27.5% is the equivalent company lax rale prevalent al reporting date. No adjustments have been made
for variations that have cecurred during the year

Local gavernment rates and charges

A calculation of the equivalent rales and charges payable oh all categery 1 businesses has bean applied 1o all land assets
owned or axclusively used by the businsss activily.

Loan and debt guarantee fees

The tebt guarantes fee 5 deslgned to ensure that councll business activities face ‘true' commercial borrowing costs in line
with private saclar competitors.

In order to calculate a debt guarantee fee, Councll has determined what the differsniial borrowing rate would have been
between the commercial rate and Council's borrewing rats for its business activifies.

canlinusd an next pags Page & of 14
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Cobar Shire Council Feecsl Plrpose Fivansn Sialaies 2020

Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

{If) Subsidies
Government policy requires that subsidies provided to oustomers, and the funding of those subsidies; must be explicitly
disclosed,

Subsidies oecur when Council provides services on a |ess-than-casi-recovery basis. This option is exercised on 2 range of
sarvices in order for Councll to meet itg community service abligations.

Accordingly, ‘subsidies disclosed’ {in relation to Mational Competition Policy) represents the ditferance between revenue
generated from 'rate of retum’ pricing and revenus ganeratad from prices set by Couneil in any given financlzl year

The overall efféct of subsidies is contained within the Income Statemant of each regorlsd business adtivity.
(iii) Return on investments (rate of return)

Tha NCP palicy statement requires thal councils with Categaty 1 businesses 'would be expected to generste a returm on capital
funds employed that is comparable to rates of ratum for private businesses operating in a similar feld'

Such funds are subsequently avaliable for mesting commitments or financing future investment strategles.
The actual rate of returm achieved by each business adlivily is disclosed al the foot of each respeclive Income Statement.
The rate of return is caloulated as follows:

Operating result before capital iIncome + interest expense

Written down value of |, PP&E as at 30 June

As a minimum, business activities should generale & relum equal Lo the Commonweaallh 10 year bond rate which (s 0.88%
st J0ME20.

(v} Dividends

Council |s ot required fo pay dividends to sither itself as owner of & range af businesses, of lo any sxlermal sntities,
& local government water supply and sewerage business is permittad 1o pay annual dividends from thair water
supply or sewerage business surpluses. Each dividend must be calculated and approved in accordance with the
Dol-Water guidelines and must not excesd 50% of the relevant surplus in any one year, or the number of water
supply or sewerage assessments al 30 June 2020 multiptied by $30 {iess the payment for tax equivalent charges,
not excesding 53 per assessment)

In accordance with the Best Praclice Management of Water Supply and Sewer Guidelines, a Dividend Paymeant

form, Statement of Compliance, Unquslified Indepandent Financial Audit Report and Compliance Audit Repott are
submitted to Dal - Water

Page Hof 11
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
Report on the special purpose financlal statements

Cobar Shire Council

To the Councillors of Cober Shire Coungil

Opinlon

I have sudited the accompenying apecial purpose financlal statements (tha financial stataments) of
Cobar Shire Council's (the Council) Declared Businazz Activities, which comprise the Statement by
Coungcliors and Management, the Income Statemant of sach Declared Business Activity for the year
ended 20 June 2020, the Statement of Financial Fosifion of each Declared Business Actlvity as at
20 June 2020 and Nota 1 Significant accounfing policies for the Business Activiles declared by
Coundcil.

The Declared Business Activities of the Council ara:

Water Supply Business Activity
- Bewerage Business Activity.
In my opinion, the financie! statements present falty, In all materal respects, the finarcial position of
the Coundll's declared Business Activities as at 30 June 2020, and their financial parformance for the
year then ended, in accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards descdbad in Mate 1 and the

Local Govamment Gode of Accounting Practice and Flnancial Reporting — update number 28 (LG
Code).

Wiy opinion should be read in conjunctlon with the reat of this raport.

Basis for Cpinion

! conducted my audit in accordance with Australian Auwditing Standards, My responsihilities under the
standards are described in tha ‘Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Staterments'
seclion of my report.

| amn Independent of the Cauncil in acsordance with the regulrements of ths:

. Australian Auditing Standards

. Accounting Frofessional and Ethlcal Standards Boand's APES 110 'Code of Ethics for
Profassional Accountants {Including Independence Standards)’ (APES 110).

| have fuffilled my other ethicat responsikilities In accordance with APES 110,

Parliament promotes independenca by ansuring the Auditar-General and the Audit Office of
New South Welas are not compromisad In their rolas by:

providing that only Parliament, and not the executive government, can remave an
Auditor-Generg/
mandating the Auditor-Geners| g= the auditor of counclils

' precluding the Auditor-Ganeral from providing non-audit services,

| belleve the audit evidence | heve obtained is sufficlent and approprate to provide a basks for my
audit apinian.

Lav 15, Eurling Park Towsr 2, 201 Sunwsx Siresl, Sydney MEW 2000
GPO Box 12, Sydney NSW 2001 | ¢ 0 276 700 | £O02 525 7579 | matiGrautnsv.goy. ou | gl joven
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Emphasis of Matter - Basis of Accounting

Without modifying my oplnicn, | draw attertion {0 Note 1 to the financial statements which describes
the basis of sccounting. The financial statements have been prepared for the purpose of fulfilling the
Council’s financial reporting responsibifities under the LG Code. As a result, the financlal statements
may not be sultable for another putpase.

Other Informatlon

The Coundil's annual report for the yvear ended 30 Juna 2020 Includes othet information in addition o
the financial staternenis and my Independent Auditor’s Report thereon. The Councllioys are
rasponsible for the other information. At the date of this indepandent Auditor's Repart, the ather
Informatfion i have raceived comprise the genaral purpose financlal atatements and Special Schedues
{the Schedules).

My opinion on the financial statements doas not cover the other information. Accordingly, | de not
express any form of assurance conclusion on the other Information. However, as required by the Local
Government Act 19593, | have separately axpreseed an oplnlon on the general purposs financial
statements and Special Schedule "Permissible Income for general rates’.

In ¢onnection with nmy audit of the financlal statemernts, my rasponsihltity s to read the other
inforrmation and, in daing so, consider whether the other Information is materally inconsistent with the
financial statements or my knowledge obtalned In the audit, or otherwlse appears to be materially
misetated.

If, based on the work | have performed, | conclude there |s a material misstatement of the other
informalion, | must report that fact.

| have: nothing fo report in this regard.

The Councillors’ Responslbilitles for the Financial Statements

The Councillors are responslie for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
and for determining that the accounting policles, descrbed in Mote 1 to the financial statements, are
appropriate to meet the raguirements in the LG Cotde. The Councaillars' responsibility alse includes
such internal contral as the Councillors determing ks necessary to enable the preparation and fair
prasentation of the financial statements that are free from material misstiement, whether due to fraud
ar enor,

In preparing the financlal statements, the Councillors are responsible for assessing the Councli's
ability to continue as s geolng concarn, disclosing, a8 epplicable, mafters related to going concam and
using the going concarn basia of accourting,

Auditor's Respons|bliitles for the Audit of the Financial $tatements
My objectives are to:

. obigin reasonabls assurance about whethar the financial statements as a whole are free from
maeterial misstaternant, whather duea to fraud or ermor

. lzsue an Indepandent Auditor's Repert induding my oginion.

Reasnnable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantss an audit conducted in
accordance with Australien Auditing Standards wi always detect material misstatements,
Misstaternents cen arise from fraud or error. Misstaternants are considered material if, individually or
in aggregate, they could reascnably be expscted to influence the ecoromic decisions users take
based cn the financizl statements.

T2



A description of my responsibillies for the audlt of the financial statemenis is located af the Audiiing
and Assurance Standsrds Board webslte at: www auasb gov.aw laifitlesiard. pdf. The
description forms part of my auditor's report.

The scope of my audit does not Include, nor provide assurance:

. that the Council carried out iis activities effectivaly, efficienty and econemically

. about the security and controls over the electronic publication of the audiied financial
statements on any website where they may ba prasented

about any other information which may have been hyperlinked toffrom the finanslal stataments,

i

Unaib Jeoffrey
Delegate of the Avuditor-iGeneral for New South Wales

21 Qctober 2020
SYDNEY
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Cobar Shire Council

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Contents

1. Understanding Council’'s Financial Statemeants
2. Statement by Councillors & Management

3. Primary Financial Statements:

Income Statement

Statement of Comprehensive Income
Statement of Financial Position
Statement of Changes in Equity
Statement of Cash Flows

4. Notes to the Financial Statements

5. Independent Auditor's Reports:

On the Financial Statements (Sect 417 [2])
On the Financial Statements (Sect 417 [3])

Overview
Cobar Shire Council is constituted under the Local Government Act 1923 [NSW) and has its principal place of
businass at:

Linsiey Street
Cobar, NSW 2835

Council's gulding principles are detalled in Chapter 3 of the LGA and includes:

principles-applying o the exarcise of funclions generally by Councl,

principles o be applied when making decisians,

principles of community paricipation,

princples of sound financial management, and

principtes for strategic planning relating o the development of an integrated planning and reporting framework.

& description of the nature of Council's oparalions and its principal sctivities ars provided in Note 2{k),

Through the use of the internet, we have snsured that our reporting is timety, complete and available at minimum
cost. All press releases. financial stalemants and other Infarmation are publicly available on our website:

WWW. Cobar. nsw. gov.al
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Cabar Shire Council Financial Slalements 2020

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 Jung 2020

Understanding Council's Financial Statements

Intreduction

Each year, individual Local Governmenis across NSW are reguired o present a set of sudited financial statements to their
Couneil and comimunity.

Wihiat you will find in the Statements

The financial statements set out the financial performancs, financial position and cash flows of Council for tha financial year
ended 30 June 2020,

Theformatof Ihe inancial statements is slandard across all NSW Councils and complies with both the acoounting and reporting
requirements of Ausirallan Accounting Standards and requirements as set down by the Office of Local Governmant.

About the Councillor/Management Statement

The financial statements must be certified by senior staif as 'presanting iaily’ the Council's financial resulls for the year and
are required to be adopted by Council — ensuring both responsibility for and ownership of the financial statements.

About the Primary Financial Statements

The financial statements incorporate five "primary” financial statemeits:

1. The Income Statement _
Summarisea Council's finandal performance for the year, ligting all Income and expenses. This statemant alsg displays
Coundll's original adopied budget to provide a comparison betwesn what was projected and whal attually sooumed,

2. The Statement of Comprehensive Income
Primarily records changes in the falr value of Council's Infrastructure, proparty, plant and equipmeant.

3. The Statement of Financial Position
# 30 June snapshat of Council's financlal position indicating its assets, liabilities and “net wealth”

4, The Statement of Changes in Equity
The overall change for the year (in dollars) of Coundl's "nel weallh™

5. The Statement of Cash Flows
Indicates where Council's cash came from and where || was spant. This siatement also displays Council's original adoptad
budgel lo provide a comparison betwean what was projecied and whal aclually occurred,
About the Notes to the Financial Stetements
The Nates 1o the Financial Statements provide greater detail and addifional informaltion on the five primary financial statements.
About the Auditor's Reports
Council’s financial statements are required to be audited by the NSW Audit Office.
frn NSW the auditor provides 2 audit reporis
1. an opinian on whether the financial statemenis present fairly the Coundll's financal perdormance and position; and
2, Ihelr observations on the conduct of the audit, including commentary on the Councll's financial perormance and financial
position.,
Who usgss the Financlal Statemsnls?

The financial stelements are publicly @ailable documeanis and must be presented at a Council mesting between saven days
and five wesks after the date of the audil repoar.

The putilic can make submissions to Councll up 1o seven days subsaguent to the public presentatinn of the financial sistements.

Councll is required to forward an audited st of finanaial statements ta the Office of Local Govermment.

confinued on nexd pags Page 3 of 65
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Cobar Shire Council Financial Statemants 2020

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Understanding Council's Financial Statements (continued)
Kay Evants of 2018-20
covID-19

The global health crisis from the COVID-19 virus has not had a materal impact on Council's aperations which is reflected in the
financial statements. '

In March 2020 a number of fasiities, servicas and avents wem significantly affectad during the period of
pandemic restrictions due Lo the requirement o close,

Page 4 of 65
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Cobar Shire Councit Financlal Stetementa 2020

(General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 Juna 2020

Statement by Counciliors and Managemsnt made pursuant ta Section 413(2)(c) of the Local
Government Act 1983 (NSW) (as amended)

The attached Gereral Purpose Flinancial Etatements have beaen prepared In accordance with:
+  the Local Government Act 7993 {NSW) {as amendsd] and the regulations made thersunder.
the Australian Accounling Standards and other pronouncements of the Auatralian Accourding Standeards Bozm
+ W Locs! Government Code of Accounting Practice and Finenchal Reporting.

Ta tha bast of our knowladge and bellaf, these statements:
+ prasent faily the Councl'’s oparating result and Ainandal posifion for the yaar
«  apcord with Councll's accounting and other records.
We are not aware of any matter that would render these statermants false or misleading in any way.

Slgnad In accordance with a resciution of Councfl made on 27 August 2020,

Liliane Brady Patar Abbott
Mayor Councillor
20 Octoher 2020 20 Celober 2020

i .

S S

Peler Wiathko

Genaral Maneger Rasponsibia Accounting Offlcer
20 Oclabar 2020 20 Octobsar 2020

Fage 5 of 85
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Cobar Shire Council
Income Statement

for the year ended 30 June 2020
Original
unaudited
budget
2020 %000

Income from continuing operations

6,282 Rates and annual charges
16,5686  User charges and fees
-~  Gther evenues
11,132 Grants and confributions provided for operating purposss:
8,030  Grans and contributions provided lof capilal purposes
326 Interestand investment ingome
—  Met gains from the disposal of assets
MNel share of Interests in joint ventures and assoclates
o T using the equity method
42,341 Total income from continuing operations
Expenses from continuing operations
13.534  Employes benefits and on-costs
76 Borrowlng costs
8.724  Malenals and contracls
6.746  Depreciation and amorlsation
5.674 Othar expanses
180  Met losses from the disposal of assels
= Write off of assat
_ Metshare of interests in joint ventures and associates
using the equity mathod:
34,934 Total expensss from continuing operations
_ 7407 Operating result from continuing operations
7.407 Net operating result for the year
7407 Netoparating resull atinbutable to cournd|
(g23) Netopersting result for the year before grants and contributions

‘provided for capital purposes

kel
b

iEs
3=

Financial Statements 2020

Actusl Actual
2020 2019
B.173 6,182

13,669 18,616
2,038 518

10,148 4418
5,853 10,701

3565 515

- 85

- 3,733
38,035 49,778
13,117 13,564

83 83

8.7 10,830

6,837 6,304
2,694 3,680

o8 =

= 587

3,071 _
34115 35,148
3820 14830

3,920 14,630
3,420 14,630

(1.733) 3,820

The Council has ol restated comperatives whet Inftially. applyving AASE 1058 income of Not-for-Profil Entifies, AASE 18 Revanye from
Contracts with Custorners and AASE 16 Leasas. The comparative |nformation bas been preparsd under AASE 111 Construction

Contracts, AASE 118 Revenue, AASE 1004 Conthibulions, AASE 117 Leases and related Accourting Intempratations

The sbove Income Statement should be read in conjunciion with the accompenying noles.

78

Fage 5 of B5



Cobar Shire Council

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 30 June 2020

3 000

Net operating result for the year (as per Income Statement)

Other comprehensive income:
Arnounts which will nol be reclassified subssquanly to the opemting resull
Gain (loss) on revaluation of IPP&E

Total items which will not be reciassified subsequently to the oparating
result

Total other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Tatal comprehensive income attributable to Council

Neles.

Financial Statements 2020

2020 2079
3,920 14,630
4 39,083
113 19 083
313 39,083
4233 53713
4,243 £3,.713

The Gounail has not restated comparatives when initially applying AASE 1058 income of Nol-for-Profit Entifies, AARE 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers and AASE 16 Leases The comparative information has been prepared under AASE 111 Construction
Contracts, AASE 118 Revenus, AASE 1004 Cantributions, AASE 117 Leases shd related Adcounting Interprelations

This above Statement of Comprehensive Income should bie read in conjunction wilh fie scoompsnying noles,

L1
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Cobar Shire Council

Statement of Financial Position
asat 30 June 2020

§'000

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Irvastmenis

Receivables

Inventornies

Total currant assats

Non-current assets

Recehables

Infrastructurs, property, plant and equipment

Right of use assets

Investments accounted for using the equity method
Total non-current assels

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities
Fayables

Income recelvad in atdvance
Conlracl labilities

Lease iabiliies

Borrowings

Provisions

Total current fiabilities

Non-current liabilities
Lease labilities
Barrowings

Provisions

Total non-current liabilities
Total liakilities
Met assets

EQUITY
Aocurmulated surplus
Revaiuation reserves

Total equity

Nales

5in

Sityy

Ba

Wb

A

Fimancial Stalaments 2020

Restafed Resfated

2020 2019 1July 2018
7,746 10,548 12,865
15,000 13,000 5,000
4473 3,680 2,748
1,280 1,111 1,081
28,499 28,337 22,694
308 160 B
334,822 328,382 283,182
23 = =
BBz _ A7\ 1
335,885 332,275 283,233
264,384 360,812 305927
2018 3.048 1,790

- 151 222

2073 - =

28 - -

219 186 250
2297 2,228 2,208
6,630 5623 4,470

72 a ;

801 834 1,030

162 146 131

835 980 1,161
7,485 6,608 5.631
356818 354,009 300,296
114,806 112.308 o7.678
242013 241,700 202 617
356,919 354,009 300,296

Tha Coungil has not restated comparzatives when inffally applying AASE 1058 incorme of Nai-for-Profl Entiies, AASE 15 Revenue from
Coriracts with Custurmers and AASE 16 Lesses. The comparative Information has been prepered under AASE 117 Construction

Contracts, AASE 118 Revenve, AASE 1004 Conlributions, AASE 117 Leases and ralaled Accounting Interpretstions.
The above Stalement ol Financial Pasilion should Be read in conjunction with the accompanying roles.

81
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Cobar Shire Council

Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year endead 30 June 2020

as at JN0620
IFPLE

Aceumulated  revaluation Toral
§ 000 e suiplus - reserve: rquify
Dpaning balance 112,308 255,731 368,040
Corraction of pror pedod érrors s - {14,031) {14,031)
Changes due (o AASE 1658 and AASE 15 adoption 12 o (na23 = (1,323}
Restated opening balsnce 110.886° 241,700 352 BAG
Net operating resull for the year 3940 = ELT]
Mot operating result for the period 3820 - 3820
Other comprehansive income
— Gairi (foss) on révaluation of IPPEE - 313 313
Other comprehensive income 313 N3
Total comprehensive income 1953 33 4233
Equity ~ balance at end of the reporting period — 14806 242013 356819

Fnancial Salements 2020

a5 af 300619
IPPEE
Accumufated revaluation
surplus rEsETVE
87 679 216,648
- (14.031)
OTETe 202817
14630 =
14,630 =
. = 38,083
38,080

4630 39083

112,309 241,700,

Tofal

equity

I 327
(14,081}

300,206

14,630

. 38083
39,0871
83713

54,008

The Councl has nol restated comparatives when initially applying AASE 1058 Incarme of Not-for-Profit Enfifies, AASE 15 Revafiua from Cantracts with Custamers arnd AARSE 16 Leases The camparative
information has been prepared under AASE 111 Construsction Confracts, AASE 118 Fevenue, AASE 1004 Contributions, AASE 117 Leasss and related Accounting Interpretations,

The above Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the sccompanying notes.

Page 8 of 5
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Cobar Shire Council

Statement of Cash Flows

for the year ended 30 June 2020
Original
unaudited
budget
2020 § 000 Neta

6,282
16,556
325
18,168

(13,534)
(B,724)
(90}

(5:830)

(20.,000)

(18,005)
_ (47.327)

{259)

(258)
— (3433)

_ 18500
13.067

10,000
_ 23.067

Cash flows from operating activities
Recelpts:

Rates and annual charges

User charges and fees

Irvestmeant and Interes! revenus racelvead
Grants and cantributions

Other revenues

Paymanis:

Employes benefits and on-costs
Materlals and contracts

Baorrawlng oosts

T

Net cash provided (or used in) operating Ll

activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Recoipts:

Sale of investment securties

Sale of infrastructure, proparty, plant and eguipment
Payinents:

Furchase of Invesiment securities

Purchase of Infrastruciure, property, plant snd equipment
Net cash provided (or used in) investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Payments:!

Repayment of borrowings and advances

Lease liabilities (principal repayments)

Net cash flow provided (used in) financing activities

Net increasel(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Flus: cash and cash equivalents — beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents — end of the year I

plus: Investments on hand — end of year 5ty

Tatal cash, cash equivalents and investments

Flnancial Slalemesnts 2020

Actual Actuzl
2020 2019
6,207 5,803
13,866 16.998
564 438
17,650 21,933
1,621 2,013
(13,023) {13,585)
{11,500} (11,018)

{83) (83)
_{2864) _ (4.661)

12,448 17.944

42,895 40,406

360 138
{44,895) (45,005)
(13,374) (15,580
{15,014) (20.013)
(210} (188
{24} (54}
(234) (250)
(2.800) (2.319)
10,548 12,865
7.746 10,548
15,000 13,000
22 746 23,546

The Counell has nol restated comparatives when Initially applylng AASE 1058 Incame of Not-far-Profit Enfities, AASE 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Cusiormers and AASE 16 Leases, The comparalive Informalkon has besn prepared under AASE 111 Consiriction

Contracts, AASE 118 Revenus, AASE 1004 Contributions, AASE 117 Leases and related Agcounting Interpratations.

The abowve Siatemant of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes,

&3
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Cobar Shire Council Financial Statements 2020

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 1. Basis of preparation

These financial slatemants were authonsed for issue by Councll oh 20 October 2020, Cauncil has the power to amend and
reissue these financial stataments in cases where orllical information e received from public submissions ar whare the OLG
directs Cauncll to ameand the financial statemeris,

The principal aucounting policies adopted n the preparation of these financizl statements are set out balow.
These pollcies hava been consistently applied to il the years presented, unless otherwise stated,

These general purpose: financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and
Australian Accounting Interpratations, the Local Govermment Act 1983 (NSW) and Regulations, and the Local Government
Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting,

Council is a not for-prafit entity.
The financial statements are presentad In Austrafian dollars and are rounded 1o the nearest thausand dollars,

{a) Historical cast convention

Thiese financial statements have besn prepared under the historical sost convenlion, as madified by the revaluation of
certain financial assets and liabillties and cedain classes of Infrastructurs, proparty, plant and: equipment.

(b} Significant accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of inancial statements requires the use of certain entical accounting estimates. i also requires managemeant
lo exerclss its judoement in the process of applying the Councll's accounting policies,

Esfimates and |udaemernis are confinually evaluated and are based on historical experience and oilher faclors, Including

epectations of future events that may have & financlal impact on the Councll and that are belisved o be reasonabie under
lhe ciroumstances.

Critical accounting estimatas and assumptions

Counell makes estimates and assumptions conceming the future, The resuiling accounting estimales will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual resulls: The estimates and agsumptions thal have a significant nak
ef causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year
inciude:

(1} estimated lair values of Infrastructure; properly, plant and equipment - refer Note 8,

(i) employes benafit provisions — refer Note 12,

{ill) Resognitlon of FENWJO - refer note 15,

(ivt Enforceable agreements and sufficiently specific grants for revenus recognotion - refer note 3,
Significant judgements in applying the council’s accounting policies

(it} Impairment of receivaties

Any significant judgement Council has made abaul the impalrment of a number of its recaivables is i Nols 6.
Maonies and other assels received by Council

{a) The Consolidated Fund
In accordance with the provisions of Seclion 408(1) af Ihe Local Govarmment Act 1883 (NSW), all mioney and olher assats
recaived by Council is held in the Council's Consolidated Fund unless il is reqguired to behetd in the Council's Trust Fuand.

The consolidated fund has bean included in the Council's financial statements.
Cash and giher assais of the following eniities have been Included a5 part of the Consolidated Fund:
General Purpose Operations

Cobar Water Supply
Cobar Sewerage Service

aonlinued on rexl pags Page 12 of 65
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' i Financial Slatamerits 202
Cobar Shire Council i erts 2020

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year endad 30 June 2020

Note 1. Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) The Trust Fund

in accordance with the provislons of Section 411 of the Local Govemnmeant Act 1983 (NSW) (as amended), a separale and
distinct Trust Fund is maintalned to acoounl for all money and other assels recaived by the Council in lrust which must be
applied only for the purposes of, or In accordance with the trusts relating o these monles. Trust monies anil other assets
subject to Councll's control have been included in thesa repors.

The following Trust monies and other assets are held by Council but are not constdered to be under the control of Gouncil
and therefore are excluded from thess financial statements:

Manies held in trust by the Lillane Brady Village for their residents

A seperata statement of monles held In the Trust Fund s available for inspection at the Council office by any person free
of charge.

Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assels are recognised nel of the amount of associated GS8T, unless the GST incurmed is not
recovarable from the taxation authority. In this case || Is recegnised as part of the cost of acquisition of the assel or as par
of the expensea.

Receivables and payables are stated Inclusive of the amount of @5T racelvable or payable, The net amaunt of GST racoverabla
from, ar payable to the taxation authorily is included with other receivables or payables in the Statement of Financial Position

Cash fiows are presented on a gross basis, The GST companents of cash flows ansing from investing or financing activitles
lhat are recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority are prasanted as operating cash fiows.

New accounting standards and interpretations Issued not yet effective

Mew accounting standards and interpretations issued but not yet effsctive

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have besn published that are not mandatory for 30 June 2020 reporting
petiods (and which have not baen early adopted by Councll),

At at the date of authorisation of these financial statements, Council does not consider that any of those standards are [ikely
to have a matanal impact on the Council's future financial statements. financial position, financial performance or cash flows.

Council has nol elected o apply any pronouncements before their operaiive dale in fhese financlal slatemenls.

New accounting standards adopted during the year
During the year, Coundil adopted all standards which were mandalorily effective for the first time at 30 June 2020,

Those newly adopled standards which had an impact on reported position, pedormance andior disclosures have been
digcussed in Mote 13

Paga 13 of 65
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Cobar Shire Council

Francial Statemernts 2020

MNotes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 2(a). Council functions/activities — financial information

£ 0og

Functions or activities
[Sovamants

Corporate suppet

Punlic order & salaty

Public health

Erpironmert

Cormmunily sandees L education
Howsing & community smanities
Recreation & culture .
Miring & Manufacture

Transparl & communicathan
Econoimiic afifairs

Ganaral pIrposs reYenies
Water

Sewir

Jaimt Arrangements

Total functions and activitios

Income, expenses and assets have been directly altributed to the following functions or aclivities.
Detgils of those functions or activities are provided in Nofe 2(b),

Grants includod
Income from Expenses from Operating resuft from ¥ income from ) Restatad
confinuing cperations continuing opsrations continuing aperations continuing operations Carrying amaunt of asseis
2020 2018 2020 2018 2620 ‘2019 2020 2019 2020 2018
12 3 B7a 815 (BE1) {912) = - = -
5,404 3088 2,380 475 3.024 (437) = 712 24,111 25,769,
1.730 146 604 583 1,036 (437) 125 124 2158 2128
70 76 are 45 [306) {2609 50 40 - -
76 1.220 i) 46 504 274 - . - -
6,146 7.045 6,71 & 708 {B85) a7 383 2 &g 87 2503
373 236 [t B0 {371 (7B4) - B ,655 5,551
204 2349 1,825 |, 766 (1,621) 583 27 a2 18,175 17,417
14 110 B a9 G M - - - -
10,645 1338 12,620 14,318 {1,684) (B42) aros 3267 260,516 256422
- 43 aa 1,144 (36) {498) - 34 - =
6,103 7003 - - 6103 7,003 G103 4,102 - -
5471 9,802 3.582 3,365 1.808 G437 Zare H.656 2T.977 28,227
1,037 5494 i 1,047 53 (4 132 70 14,397 14262
S <) 3,071 - {sorn 373 - - ) 3,732
38,035 485,778 34,115 35,118 3,820 14630 13.588 17,870 3f4, 84 360612

Pade 14 of 65
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Caobar Shire Council Financlal Statements 2020

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 2(b). Council functions/activities - component descriptions

Details relating to the Councii's functions/activities as reported in Note 2{a) are as follows:
Governance

Includes costs ralating to Council's role as a component of democratic governmant, including electlons, members' fees and
expenses, subscriplions lo local autharity associations, mestings of Council and policymaking

Corporate support

Includes corporate support and other support servicss, englneering works, and any Coundll pelloy complliance.

Public order & safety

Includes Council's fire protection, emergency senvices, enforcament of regulations and animal control,

Public health

Includes immunisation, food cantrol, healin centres et

Environmant

Includes” noxious: plants snd Insscivermin control, other environmental profedtion; sofid waste managemen!, including
domestic waste; olher waste management olther saritstion: and garbage, sirest cleaning, drainage and stormwater
management,

Community services & education

Incluges administration and education; sacial protection (welfare); migrant, Abonigiral and ofer communily services and
administration (excluding accommeodation — as it s covered under 'housing and community amenities'); youth services; aged
and disabled persons services; children's’ senvices, including family day care; child care; and other family and children servicas

Housihg & community amenities

Includes public cemetarias, public convenisnces; strast lighting; town planning; other community amanitias, including housing
developmenl and accommadation for families and children, aged persons, disabled persans, migrants and Indlgenous persons.

Recreation & culturs

Includes publie branes; museums; art galisries; community centres-and halls: incliding public halls and perfarming arts
vanues, spofting grounds and venues: swimming pools; parks; gardens, lakes; and other sporting, recreational and cultural
services,

Mining & Manufacturs

Includes bullding control, guarries and pits and mineral resoumes.

Transport & communication

Urban local, urban regional, includes sealad and unsealed roads, bridges, footpaths, parking areas. and asrodromes.

Economic affairs

Includes camping arses and caravan parks, tourism and area promotion; indusirial development promaotion; sale yards and
markats; real estate development; commercial nursenes; and other business Lndariakings.

Ganeral Purpose revenues

Includes Coundils Financlal Assistance Grant

conlinusd on ne=l page Page 15 af 65
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Cobar Shire Council Financial Slataments 2020

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 2(b). Council functions/activities - component descriptions (continued)

Water

Inciudes Councils water filtration operations and potable and raw water supply.
Sewer

Ineludes Councils sewer freatment operations and affluent supply.

Joint Arrangements

Includes |nterest in Far Narth West Joint Orgarisation.

Note 3. Revenue from continuing operations
§ '000 AASE 2020 2019
{a) Rates and annual charges

Ordinary rates

Rasidential 1058 (1) 1.089 1,191

Farmiand 1058 (1) 695 696

Mining 1058 (1 1,736 1,728

Busiress 08411} 427 403
Less: pensioner rebates (mandatory) . (BT}
Rates levied to ratepayers 3902 3,857
Pensioner rate subisidies recaived 1058 {1 35 38
Total ordinary rates 3,937 -3.953
Special ratas

Water supplies 08 (1} TRT 745
Sewsrsge senvices 086 (1} BoE BaT
Less: pensicner rebaies (Council pallcy) I - R . 1
Rates levied to ralepayers 1,606 1.581

Pansionar rate subsidies reoceived:

—Waler 1054 (1) 12 12
- Sewerage 1058 (13 0 10
Total special rates 1,628 1,603

Annual charges
(prreLans foes i 5 4064 ¢ ABER 050 8 6510

Domestic waste management services wse  BO8 596
Annual charges levied 608 596
Total annual charges 6o 596
TOTAL RATES AND ANNUAL CHARGES 6,173 6,192
The AASE notetion (above) identifies the revenue recognition pattern for material ilems of Counall reveriue:

15 (1) indicates Income recognised under AASE 15 “at a point in time",

15 (2} indicates Income recognised under AASE 15 “oyer tima",

1058 (1) indicates income recagnised under AASE 1058 “al & painl in ime”, whils

1058 (2) indicates income recagnised under AASE- 1058 "aver ima”

continusd on nest nage F‘a:_g_a 15 af 65
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Cobar Shire Council Eamanolel Stafeenanis- 2060

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Naote 3. Revenue from conlinuing operations (continued)

Council has used 2019 year valuatlons provided by the NSW Valuer Gensral In caleulating its rates,

Accolihting policy for rates and charges
Rates and annual charges are recognised as revenus witen the Coundl abtaing control over the asssts comprising these
raceipts which is the beginning af the rating period ta which they relata.

Prapald rales are recognised as a financial liability until the beginning of the rafing period.

Pensicner rebates relate to reductions in rates and cestain annual charges for eligible pensioners’ place of residence in the
local government coundll area that ars not subsidised by the NSW Governmant.

Pensjoner rate subsidies are received from the NSW Government to provide a confribution towards the pensioner rebates
and are In substance a rates payment

2019 accounting policy
Control over assels acquired from rates and annual charges is obtained at the commencament of the rating vear as it ls an
enforceabie dabt linked to the rateable property or, where earlier, upon recelpt of the rates.

$ 000 AASH 2020 2019

(b) User charges and fees

Specific user charges

{par 5502 - specific "actual Lse’ charges)

Waler supply services 1511 1,644 2,289
Sewerage services 15(1) 13 19
Wasle management services {nan-domestic) 1511 160 180
Total specific user charges 1,817 2,480

Other user charges and fees
{i}) Fees and charges —statutory and regulatory functions (per s.608)

Inspecton servicas 15141) 2 -
Ptanning and building regulaticn EENTH 72 98
Privale works — section 67 1511 ag2 291
D‘lhﬂr _ 15 1) T 110
Cobar Water Board service foe 5 22§ 286
Total fees and charges - statutory/regulatory Th2. 785
(i) Fees and charges - other (incl. general usar charges (per s 608))

fBarocdrome imm 85 56
Aged cars 1844 3.008 3,287
Caravan park 151 85 116
Child cara _ (1) 2,798 2577
RMS charges (state roads not controlied by Coundll) 152 3,962 8,086
Rertand hire of nan-nvestment property 15 (1 334 381
Dthar an2 B
Total fees and charges — other 11,100 15,351
TOTAL USER CHARGES AND FEES 13,669 18,616
The AASB notation (above) identifies the ravenue recognition patlern for material llems of Councl revenus;

15 {1} Indicates incomea recognised under AASE 15 “at & point In tima”,

15 {2} indicates income recognisad under AASE 15 "over lime”,

1058 (1) indicalss inoome recognised wunder AASE 1058 “ata point |n time", whila

1058 {2) indicates Incoma recognised under AASS 1058 "over time”

confiruad on next page ' Page 17 of 65



Cobar Shire Council Financial Statemants 2020

MNotes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 3. Revenue from continuing operations (continued)

Accounting policy for user charges and fees _
Revanue arsing from user charges and fees Is recognised when or as the performance obligation is completed and the
customer recelves the benefit of the goods / services bieing provided.

The performance obligation retates o the specific services which are provided to the customers and generally the payment
tarms are within 30 days of the provision of the service or in some cases such as caravan parks, the customer is required to
pay on arrivat, There is no malerial obligation for Coundll in relation o refunds or returns,

2019 accounting policy )
User charges and fees are recognized as revanue when the sarvice has been provided.

$ ‘000 AGSE 2020 2019

() Other revenues

Fines 1068 (1) 4 T
Legal fees recovery - rales and charges (extra charges) 1058 11 23 30
Commisslons and agency fees 1056 (1] 154 156
Dizsal rabats 105811 a5 a7
Reaimbursaments 1688 41 17 20
Othar 088 1.7941 208
TOTAL OTHER REVENUE 2,039 518

The AASE nolalion (abova) identifies the revenue recognition patiern for matenal items of Councll revenue!

15 {1} Indicates Income recognised under AASE 15 “al a point in time",

15 {2) indicales Income recognized under AASE 15 “over lime",

1058 (1) Indicates Income recognised under 8458 1058 “at a paint in tima”, while
1088 (2) indicates income recognised under AASB 1058 “over time"

Accounting policy for other revenue
Wihere the revenue retales to a contract with customer, the ravenue is recognised when or-as the parformance obligation is
completed and the customer recelves the benefit of the goods [ services being provided

Whera the revenus relates to a confracl which s not enforcesble or does nol contain sufficiently specific performance
ohiigations then revenue is recognised when an unconditional right to a recelvable arises or the cash is recelved, which s
earfier

2019 accounting poliey:

Council recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be raliably measured, It is probable fhat future economic benefils
will flaw to the Council and specific critera have been met for each of the Council's activities as described below, Council
bases its estimates on historleal resulls, taking into consideratian the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics
of each arrangemant.

Rental Incoma is accounled for on 2 straight-ling basis over tha lease term,

Miscellznzous sales are recognised when physical possession has transferred to the customer which is deemed o ba the
point of transfer of risks and rewards.

Other Income |8 recarded when the payment is due, the value of the payment is notified, or the payment |s recelved,
whichever ooccurs first.

) Operating  Operating Capital Capital
§ '000 AASH 2020 2019 2020 2019

(d) Granls

General purpose (untied)
conlinded on nest page Page 18 of 65
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Caobar Shire Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 Jung 2020

Note 3. Revenue from continuing operations (continued)

Firanckal Eﬁ!mrttszﬂm

Operating  Operating Capital Capital
¥ ‘000 ALSE 2020 2019 2020 2019
Current year allocation
Finanoial assistance — general comporent 1058 (1) 2,074 2017 - -
Financial assistance - local roads component 1058 (1] B89 857 - -
Payment in advance - futurs year allocation
Financlal assistance —general component B (1] B4z 2.086 - =
Financial assistance — local roads companent 10856 (1) 2,198 A94 = -
Total general purpose 6,103 5.854 - -
Specific purpose
Waler supplies BE (24 BA 20 2,884 6,636
Sewerage services: 1058 1) =3 4 132 B8
Community centres 1058 (1) 10 - = #
Heritage and culunsl 1058 (1) T - - -
Library 1068 (1} 72 - - -
Library —special projects 1058 1) 10 - - -
MNoxious weads 1058 (1} 50 ~ - -
NEW rurai fire servipes 1058 11 126 124 - -
Recraation and cullure 1058 (1} 1 - 119 2,463
Stormifinod damage 1088 (1} - A56 - 712
Strest lighting 1058 (1) 40 x = =
Transpor 10158 [T 1,628 B78 - -
Regional Roads Repair Program 1088 (1} - - 5 —
Fixing country roads 1058 [3) - - 2.032 28
Sanlors weak 1058 (1} 2 - - -
Youth services 1058 (1} 55 35 - 299
Other 1088 (2) a7 253 207 144
Total specific purpose 2116 1,970 5379 10.346
Total grants 8,219 7624 5379 10.346
Grant revenue is attributable to:
— Commonwealth funding 5,103 5,854 1.000 65
~ State funding 2118 1770 4,378 B.B56
— Other funding = - - 1,425

B.218 7.624 5,379 10.348

The AASE nolation (abova) identifies (he revenus recognition patlern for material ltems of Councll revenus:
15 (1) indicates Income recognised under AASE 15 “at a point in time”,
15 (2} indicates Income recognised under AASE 16 “over lime",
1058 (1) indicates incame recognised under AASE 1058 “al a point in time”, while
1058 (2) indicates Incoms recognised under AASE 1058 "over time”

QOperating  Operating Capital Capital
$ ‘000 e AASS 2020 2018 2020 2019
(e) Contributions
Developer contributions:
(s7.4 & s7.11 - EP&A Act, s64 of the LGA):
Cash contributions
ST 12— fixed development cotisent levies T05E 1) - - 274 -
ooptinued on next pags .. Fage 19'af 65
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MNotes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 3. Revenue from continuing operalions (continued)

Operating  Operating Capital Capital

£ 000 Mities ANSE 2020 2018 2020 2019
Peveloper contributions 0 N R - | = ____ 35S
Total developer contributions i - B4 274 355
Other contributions:

Cash contributions

RMS contributions (regicnal rads) 1058 (3} 1.827 1,740 - -
Total other cantributiens __t.eay 1740 - -
Total contributions 1,927 1794 274 356
TOTAL GRANTS AND

CONTRIBUTIONS 10,146 9418 5653 10,701

The AASB notation (above) identiffes the revenue recognition pattern for matenal items of Council revenue:
15 (1) indicates Incorme recognised under AASE 15 "al a point In tme",
15 (2] Indicates Incarms recognised under AASE 15 "over Ume",

1058 (1) indicates income recognised under AASE 1058 “at a point in time”, while
1058 (2) indicates ncome recognised under AASE 1058 "over tima"

Accounting policy for grants and contributions
Aecounting policy from 1 July 2018
Grant income under AASE 15

Where grant income arlgas from an agresment which (s enforcestile and conlaing sufliciently specific pedformance obligations
then the revenue are recognised when control of each performance obligations is satisfied.

The performanca ohligations are vaned based on 1he agreement. Payment terrms vary depending on the lerms of the grant,
cash |s received uplran! for some grants and on (he achisvemenl of cerain paymenl miteslones for others

Each performance obligabion is considersd 1o ensure that the revenue recegnition reflects the transtar of control and within
grant agresmeants thera may be some performance abligatlons where cantral transfers at a point In time and athers which have
continuous transfer of control aver the life of the contracl

Where control is transferred over ime, generally the inpul methods being sither cests or time incurred are deemed td be the
most aporopriate metheds 1o reflect the transfer of benefit

Grant income

Asssts arising from grants |n the scope of AASE 1058 s recognized at the assets fair value when the asesl is received
Councils considers whether there are any related lability or equity items asscclated with the asset which are recognised in
accordance with the relevant accounting standard.

Orice the assets and llzabllities have Been recognised then ingome is recognised for any remaining asset value at the time
ihat the asset is received )

Capital grants

Capital grants recelved to enable Courcll to- sequire or construet &n tem of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 1o
idantified specificabens which will be undsr Council's control and which is enforceable are recognised as revenus as and when
the obligation to construct or purchase |s complated.

For construction projects, this |s generally as the conslrustion progresses In sccardance with cosis Incurred since this (s
deermed to be the most appropriate measure of the completensss of the construction project as there s no prafit margin,

continued on next page Paga 20 of 65
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Cabar Shire Council Finanoial Statements 2020

Motes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 Jupe 2020

Note 3. Revenue from continuing operations (continued)

Far acquisitions of assels, the revenue is recognised whan the assel is acquired and controlled by the Council.
Contributions

Council has obligations lo provide faciiilles frem contribution revenuss levied on developers under the provisions of sections
74, 7.1 and 712 of the Envimnmental Planning and Assessmant At 1578,

While: Councit genesally incorporates thase amaunis as part of a Deveiopment Consants Ordar, such developer contributions
are only recogrised as income Upen receipt by Councll, dua to the possibility that individual development consents may not
be acted upon by the applicant and, accardingly, weuld not be payable to Couneil.

Developer contributions may only be expended for the purpeses for which the contributions were raquired, but the Couricll
may apply contributions according to the priorities established in work schedules

Accounting policy prior to 1 July 20159

Control over grants and contributions 15 normally obtsined upon their receipt (or scquittal) and revenue is recognised at this
fime and s valued at the fEir value of the granted or contributed asset at the date of ransfer

Witere granis or contributions recogrised as revenuss durng the finencial year wete obtained on condition that they be
expended in a particular manner, of used ovar a particular period, and those conditions wera un-discharged al reporting dats,
the unused grant or confribution s disclosad below,

& liability s recognised In respect of revenus thal is reciprocal in nature lo the extent that the requisite service has not been
provided at reporting date.

Note 4. Expenses from continuing operations
¥ 000 2020 2019

(a) Employee benefits and on-costs

Salanes and wages 10,6804 10,695
Emploves leave entitlaments (ELE) 823 1,086
Superannuation G910 ‘316
Superannuation — deflined benefil plans it T0
Workers' compensation insurance 506 BEY
Otter s 3
Total employee costs - 13412 13,793
Less! capitalised costs {295) (229)
TOTAL EMPLOYEE COSTS EXPENSED 13,117 13,564
Mumber af 'full-time agulvaien!’ employees (FTE) at yaar and 135 131
Mumber of 'full-time squivalen!’ employees (FTE) at yvear and {incl. vacancias) 167 148

Accounting policy for employes benefiis and on-costs
Employes bensfit expenses ars recorded when the servics has been providad by the employes.

Retirement banefit obligations

All employees of the Counail are entitied to benefits on retlireinent, disabllity or desth. Councll contrbutes o varous definad
benefif plans and defined contribution plans on behali of its employess.

Syperannualion plans

canlinued on Hest page Page 21 ol 65
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Cobar Shire Council

Notes fo the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 Juns 2020

Note 4. Expenses from continuing operations (conlinued)

Firancial Statements 2020

Contrlibutions fo definad contribulion plans are recognised as an expanse as they become payable. Prepaid contributions are
regegnised asan assel 1o the éxtant that a cash refund or & reduction in the fulure payments is svailable.

Council particlpates in a defined benefit plan under the Local Gevernment Superannuation Scheme, however, sufficlent
information to acoount for the plan as a defined benefit is not available and thersfore Coundl accounts for 1= abligations o
defined benefit plans on the same basis as lts obiigations o definsd contribution plans, |.e. a5 an sxpenss whan it becomes

payabie - refer to Mote 12 for more information.

§ ‘000
(b) Materials and conlracls

Raw materigis and consumables
Contractor and consullancy cosls
Information technology

Printing and copy serviges
Rogdworks {pavement stabllisation)
Roadworks (spray saaling)
swirmming pool

Auditors remuneration *

Legal eaxpenses:

~ Legal expenses: debl recovery
— Legal axpanses, othar

Other

Total materials and contracis

Less: capitalised cosis
TOTAL MATERIALS AND CONTRACTS

Accounting policy for materials and contracts
Expenses are recorded on an accruals basls as the council receives the goods or serviges.

Operafing leases (2018 only)

2020 2018
13,375 18,018
433 162

14 86

83 88

498 638
2.489 3,388
224 213

74 67

8 27

30 57

40 =
17.268 22,745
(8,051) {11.815)
_ 10,830

8217

l.eases in which a significant partion of the risks and rewards of cwnership are not transferred to Counct as lessee are classified
as operaling leases. Paymenls made under cperating leases (net of any Incentives received from the lessor) are charged 1o

the income statement on a straighi-line basis over the perlad of the leasa,

2. Auditor remuneration

During the year, the following fees were incurred for services provided by the auditor
of Council, related practices and non-related audit firms

Auditors of the Councll - NSW Auditor-General:

(i) Audit and other assurance services
Audi and review of financial statements

Remuneration for audit and other assurance services

Total Auditor-General remuneration

s ‘000

(¢) Depreciation, amortisation and impairment of
non-financial assets

confinu=d on nexl page
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 4. Expenses from continuing operations (continued)

$'000 Netes 2020 2019
Depreciation and amortisation

Flant and egulpment 937 ‘93z
Crifice equipment 55 42
Furnitura and fittings 13 =
Land improvemenis (depreciabls) 106 9a
Rural Fire Service —Vested Assals 172 106
Infrastructure: 7

— Bulldings — nan-specialised 183 1683
— Bulldings — specialised a2 405
= Dither structures an 18
— Roads 3,412 3677
— Stormwalter dralnage 20 7
= Water supply network 771 271
— Sewerage network 253 383
- (ther open space/racreational assels 247 185
Right of use assets E 3 -
Other asseis:

= Library books 1 410
- Other 4 2
Total depreciation and amortisation costs 6,837 5,394
Write off of Asset

infrastructura: 7

— Blildings —specialised _ - 587
Total write off of asset - E
TOTAL DEPRECIATION, AMORTISATION AND

IMPAIRMENT FOR NON- FINANCIAL ASSETS B 5,837 6,981

Accounting palicy for depreciation, amortisation and impairment expenses of non-financial assets

Depreciation and amortisation
Depraclation and amortisabon are calculated using the straight line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual values,
over their estimated useful lives. Useful lives are Includad In Note 8 for IPPE assets and Nole 10 for right of use assats,

Depréciation |s capitalised where In-house assets have contributed to new assets.

impairment of non-financial assets

Council assets held at falr value that are not held primarily for their ability 1o generate net oash flow, and that ars deemed to be
spacialised, are no longer required to be tested for Impairment under AASE 138, This Is bacause fhese assats are assessad
on an annusal basis 1o ensure that fhe camying amount is not materially different from fair value and therefore an impairment
loss would be captured during this assessmenL

Intangible assets thal have an indefinlte useful life, or are not yet available for use, are tested annually for impaimmernt, or more
frequently if events ar changes in ciredimstances indicate that they might be Impaired, Other assats fhat do not meet the criterla
above are lested for Impalrmiant whenaver events or changes in circumstances Indicate that the varrylng amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment Ioss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds ifs recoverable
amaunt. The recoverable amount is the higher of an assat's fair value less costs to sell and valuse in use.

Far the purposes of assessing (mpairmenl, assels are groupad at the lowest |avels for which there are separately identifiable
cash Inflows thal are largely Independsnt of the cash inflows from ather assels or groups of assels (cash-generating Units)
Mon-financial assets thal suflered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impalrment st each raporting dale.

Impalment losses for revalued assets are firstly offset against the amount in the revaluation surplus for the class of asset,
with onfy the excess to be recognisad In the Income Statsment.

conlinuee an nexl pape Page 23 of 65
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 Jung 2020

Note 4. Expenses from continuing operations (continued)

3 ‘000 2020

(d) Other expanses

Bad and doubtiul debis {585)

Child care: 1,793

Contributiong/levies to other levels of governmeant

—Emergency servicas lavy (includes FRNSW, SES, and RFES lavies) 11

—NSW fire brigade lavy 28

- WEW rural fire service lavy 200

Councillor expenses — mavoral feg b

Councillor expenses — counclilors’ fees 127

Councillors’ expenses {incl, mayar) - other (excluding feps abiove) 20
Election expenses -

Fira control expenses 123

Insurance 214

Licanses 56

Strest lighting 127
Tetephone and communications 7

Other o 427
TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES 2 694

Accounting policy for other expenses
Other expenges are recorded on an secruals bass as the Council receives the goods or services,

Note 5(a). Cash and cash equivalents
§ 000 2020

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash an hand and at bank il
Cash-equivalant asssis

~ Deposits &l all 7,803
— Short-term deposis o -
Total cash and cash equivalents 7.745

Financai Statameants 2000

255
1,838

24
166
26
138
27
34
137
133
T
124
178
354

3,690

16

5,530
_ 5000
10,548

Accounting policy for cash and cash equivalents

For Statement of Cash Flow presentation purposes, cash and cash aquivatents include: cash on hand; deposits held &t call
with financial institutions; other shor-term, highly liguid investments with orlginal maturities of three months or fsss that are
readily convertible to known amounis of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank
overdrafis. Bank overdrafls are shown within borrowings In current liabiliies on the Statemeant of Financial Paosilion.

Note 5(b). Investments

2020 2020 2019 2018
$ '000 Current Non-current Current Non-current
Investments
b. Fitancial assets at amarlised cost! 00 = 13,000 -
Tolal Investments ~ 15,000 - 13,000 -
aontinuad on next page .. Page 24 of 85
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year endad 30 June 2020

MNote 5(b). Investments (continued)

2020 2020 2019 2012
8 ‘000 Current  Non-current Current  Non-current
TOTAL CASH ASSETS, CASH.
EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS 22,746 8 23,546 =

Accounting policy for investments

Financial Instruments are recogrised (nitlally on the dale lhat the Councll bacomes party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument,

On initial recognition, all financial insiruments are measured at fair value plus transaction costs (except for instruments
measured al fair value through peofit or loss where transsction costs are expensed as incurmed),

Financial assets

All izcognised financial assets are subsequently messurad in their entirety at sither amorised coel or fair value, depending
on the classification of the financial assets,

Classification

On inltigl recognition, Council tlassifies its financial assets inlo the following categories — those measured at:
«  amortised cost !
«  fair valus through profit or loss (FVTPL)
= fair valus through olher comprehensive intome — equity Instrument (FYOCl-aquity)

Financial aasstsare nol reclassified subsaguent to thelr Initiat recognition.

Amortised cost
Assels measured at amortised cost am financial assets where:
«  the business moded is to hold assets [o collect contractual cash flows, and
« the contraciual teTms give rise on specified dales o cash Nlows thal are solely payments of principal and Intarest on
the princlpal amount outstanding.

Counsil's financial assals measurad al amortisad cosl comprise trade and other recaivables, lerm deposits and cash and cash
aquivalentz in the Statemant of Financial Position,

Subsequent to initlal recognition, these assets are carmed at amorfised cost using the effective interest rate method less
provision for impairment.

Interest income, impairment and gains o loss on de-recognillon are recogrised in profit or Ipss.

Note 5(c). Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments

2020 2019

i '000 Current Currant
Total cash, cash equivalents and Investiments __ 22,746 23,546
atiributable to:
External restrictions 12,669 10,211
Internal restrictions 8,588 65,871
Unrestricted _14e G364

22746  2354F
$ 000 2020 2019
Details of restrictions
confinued on fext page Pape 25 of A5
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Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2020

Finencial Slatements 2020

Note 5(c). Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments (continued)

§ ‘000

External restrictions — Included in labllities

Spedfic purpose unexpended grants —general fund (2020 anly)

External restrictions — included in liabilities

External restrictions

Developer contnbutions — general
Developar contributions — water fund
Devetoper contributions — sawer fund

Spediic purpose unsxpended grants (recognised as revenue] - genaeral fund

Water supplies

Sewerage services

Oiher ' '

Domestic waste managemeant
Total external restrictions

Internal restrictions

Plant and vehicle teplacemienl
Recraational Assats
Employees leave entitiemant
Depot upgrade

Financial assistance grant - advance for 20/21
Road worlks — shire roads
Buillding Improvements
Operating Prajects

Footpaths & Disability

Land

Total intarnal restrictions

TOTAL RESTRICTIONS

Note 6. Receivables

$'000

Purpose

Rates and-annual charges

Interest and gxtra charges

User chiarges and fees

Accriuad revenues

— Interest on investments

— Dther Income accrials

~ User Fees and Charges - RMS

— User Fees and Charges - Aged Cars
—Regional Roads Block Granl

— Government grants and subsidies
Total

Less: provision of Impalrmeant
Rales and annual charges

Total provision for impairment -
recelvables

ronimied an nexl pags

89

2020 2019
2,073 i
2073
a32 623
53 v
141 7
2,026 235
2,800 2,935
2,686 2,503
35 -
1,813 1.5650
12,668 10211
1218 1,162
155 85
459 444
814 Gz
3,140 2,880
B71 433
1,681 BTS
&7 168
188 180
= 202
B.586 B.87T1
21,255 17.182
2020 2020 2018 2019
Current Norn-gurrent Currant Non-current
336 327 428 G
45 71 B4 151
863 — 808 -
a1 - 131 -
- - 1,028 -
2486 = - -
203 - - -
400 - - -
- - 1ot =
4473 398 3 680 835
- (S0 - 676
(80) - 1675)
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Note 6. Receivables (continued)

TOTAL NET RECEIVABLES 4474 308 G680 160
$ '000 2020 2019
Movemeant in provision for impairment of receivables

Balance at the beginning of the year (oaleulated In aocordancs with AASE 139) G875 423
+ new provisions recognisad during the yaar (685 252
Balance at the end of the year a0 B7S

Accounting policy for recelvables

Recognition and measurement
Receivables are incuded in currenl assets, sxcept for those with maturities greater than 12 mariths after the reporting date
which are classified as non-gurrent-asaeis.

Recsivables are recognised Initially af fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the efiective Inleresl
method, less provision for impairment. Recelvables are generally due for setilsment within 30 days.

Cash flows relating to shorl-term recalvables are not discounted if the effect of discounting |s immaterlal.

Impairment
Impatrment of finandal assets measured at amortised cost is recognised an an expacied credit loss (ECL) basis,

When determining whether the credit risk of a financia! asset has increased slgnificantly sinee initial recognition, and when
estimating ECL, the Councll considers reasonshle and supportabls Information that |s relevant and avaiiable withoul undue
coat or efforl. This Inciudes both quantitative and qualitative (nformation and analysis-based on Councll's Ristorical experience
and informed credit assessment. and including farward-looking information.

When considering the ECL for rates debtors, Council t2kes into account that unpald rates represent 8 oharge against the
raleable property thal will be recovered when the property |s next sold. For non-rates debtars, Gouncil uses fhe presumplion
iral an assel which is more than 30 days pasl due has seen a significant increase in credit risk,
The Council uses the presantation that & financial assel 15 in defaull when;
+ the other party |s unlikely to pay ils credit obligations te the Council in full, withoul reeourse by the Councll to aclions
such as realising sscurily ([if any is held) or
« Iha financial assels (for non-rates debtors) are more than 90 days past dua.

Cradii lozses are measured as the present value of the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with
the contract, and the ash fiows expectad to be mealved, This is applied using a probability welghted approach,

On Initial recognition of the asset, an estimate of the expected credit iosses for the naxt 12 months is recognised. Whara the
assal has expenanced significant increase in credit risk than the lifetime losses are estimated and recagnised.

Council uses the simplified approach for frade recelvables where the expeciad lifelime credll losses sre rscognised on day 1

There has been na change in the astimaton techniques or significant assumptions made during fhe current reporting pencd.
The Council wriles off a trads recelvable when there is information indicating thal the dsblor is In severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. whan the debior has heen placed under liguidation or has enlersd inlo
bankruptcy procesdings

Mone of the recelvables that have bean written off are subjsct to enfornemeant activity,

Whsre the Council renegollates the lerms of receivables due from certain customers, the new expectad cash flows are
discountad at the onginal effective interest rate and any resulting differencs to the carrying value Is recognised In profit or lass.

Rates and annual charges outstanding are sacured agalnst the property.

Page 27 of 65
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Note 7. Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
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Note 7. Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (cantinued)
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Note 7. Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (continued)

Accounting policy for infrastructure, property, plant and equipment

Infrastructure, properly, plant and eguipment are Reld at fair value. independent comprahensive valuations are parfurmed at
least svery five vears, however the carrying amount of assets 15 assessed by Councll gt sach reporiing date o confirm Lhst
itIs not matenally different from current fair value,

Watar and sewarage network assets am indexed at each reparting periad in accordance with the Rates Reference Manual
issued by Departmant of Industry {Dol)— Watar unless revalued.

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation are credited to tha revaluation reserva. To the extent that the increase
revarses a decrease praviously recognising profit or loss relafing 1o thal asset vlass, the incresse is lirst racognised as profit
or loss. Decreases thal reverse previous increases of assels in the same class are firsl charged againsi revaluation reserves
directly in equity to the extent of lhe remaining resarve altnbutabls to the class; all other decresses are charged lo the Income
Staternent,

Subsequant costs are intluded In the assat's camying amount or recognised as @ separate assel, as appropriale, anly when il
is prabable that future esconomic benefits associated with Ihe item will fiow to Coundil and the cost of the tem can be measured
rallably. All other repalirs and maintenance are charged to the Income Slatement during the financial pariod In which they are
incurred.

When infrastructure, propery, plant and eguipment are acquired by Counal for nil or nominal consideration, the assels are
initially recognised ot their fair valus at acquesition date.

Land |s not depreciated. The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases s depreclatad over 1he asset's
usaful [ife or aver fhe shorer of the assst's uselul life and the lsase term f there Is no ressonable carainty thal he Councl|
will obitain ownership al tha end of the lease lerm, Depreciation on oiher assets is caloulatad using the stralght-ling method 1o
allocate their cost, net of thelr residual values, over thelr estimated wselul lives as fallows:

Plant and equipment Years  Other equipment Years
Oiffics aquipment St0 10  Playground eguipmant 51016
Office furniture 10te20  Benches, seats sto. 104020
Computer equipmant 4

Wahicles Sio 8 Buildings

Heavy plantroad making equipmani Stod Buildings: masonry 5010 100
Diniar ptant and equipment 1158 Bolldings: other 2010 40
Water and sewar assels Stormwater assets

Dams and reservolrs B01n 100 Drains 80 o 100
Bores 20040 Culvers 50 1o 80
Reticulation plpes: BVC 7016 80 Flood control structures 50 1o 100
Reticulation pipes: ather 25175

Pumps and lelemetry 151020

Transporiation assels Other infrastructurs assets

Sraled roads: surface 20 Bulk sarthworks 20
Sealed roads: struciure 50  Swirmming poois a0
Unzealed mads 20 Unsealed mads 20
Bridge: concrete 100 Diher open spacerecreational assets 20
Bridge; other 50 Other infrastructure 20
Road pavements &0

Kerbh, gutter and footpaths 40

The assels’ resldual values and usalul lives are reviewad, and adjustad If appropriate, at each reporting date.

Land under roads
Land uirder roads is land under readways-and road reserves including land under focipaths, nature strips and median sirips.

Council has elected not to recognise land under roads acquired befors 1 July 2008 In accordance with AASE 1051 Land
Under Roads.

eanlinusid on Aol page Page 30 of 85
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Note 7. Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (continued)

Land undar mads acquired after 1 July 2008 is recognised in accordanoe with AASE 116 Property, Plant and Eguipmant.

Crown reserves

Crown reserves under Councll's care and control are recognised as assits of the Councll. While ownership of (e resarves
rarnains with the Crown, Gouncil refains opersbonal control of the reserves and is responsible tor their mainterance and use
In acoordance with the specilic purposas 1o which the reserves are dadicatad,

Impravemients on Crown reserves-are also recorded a5 assets, whila maintenanice costs incurred by Councll and révénues
relating to the reservas are recognised within Council's Income Statement,

Rural Fire Service asseis

Under Saclion 119 of the Rural Fire Services Act 1897 (NSW), “ali firafighting equlpment purchased or constructed whally
or from money to the credit of the Fund is io be vested in the council of the area for or on behall of which the firefighting
aquipment has bean purchased or construclad”.

These Rural Fire Service assels are recognised as assets of the Councll [n these financial statements,

Note 8. Contract assets and liabilities

2020
3 ‘000 Mt Current
Cortract liabilities
Grants and contributions received in advance:
Unexpended capital grants (to construct Councll controlisd assets) i 2,073
Total grants received i advance 2073
Total contract liabilities 2,073

Mot=s

Councll has recelved fupding to construct assets including sporting facilities, bridges, library and other infrastructure. The
funds recsived are under an enforcesble contract which require Counail to construct an identified asset which will be under
Cauncil's control on completion. The revenue is recogrised as Council constructs the assal and the confract liabliity reflents
the funding received which cannot vet be recognised s revenus. The revenue is sxgected lo be recognised in the next 12
manths.

Significant changes in contract assets and liabilities

The contract liabilities have arisen on adoption of AASE 15 and AASE 1058. Previously income received In advance was
recognised for reciprocal contracts, The increase in a contract liabillty Is primarly due to grants in the scope of AASE 15 .and
capital grants recelvad by Councll fo acquire or construct assets which will be under Council's control, Previousty, revenue
was recognised on receipl of the funds,

Accounting policy for contract assets and liabilities

VWheare the amounts bifled o customens are basad on tha achigvernant of variaus milestones establishied in the contract, the
amounts recognised as revenue in & given period do not necessarily coincide with the amounis billed to or cedifisd by the
Lstormer

Whan a perommance obligation Is satisfied by transferring 8 promised good or service 1o the cuslomer before the cuslomer

pays consideralion or befors the paymeant is due, Councll presents the work in progress as a contract asset, unless tha rights
to that amount of censideration are unconditional, in which case Councll recognises a recelvabie.

sonfinusd on nexl page Page 31 af 65
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Note 8. Contract assets and liabilities (continued)

Whan an amounl of consideration fs received from 2 customer [ fund provider prior to Councll transfzrring a good or =ervice
tx the custorner, Councll presents the funds which excesd revenue recognised as a conlract liability.

Note 9. Leases

The Councll has applied AASE 16 using the modified retrospective (cumulative catch-up) methed and thersfare the
comparative Information has not been resiatad and continues to ba reported undar AASE 117 and related Intarpratations.

(i) Council as a lesses

Council has leases for office and IT eguipment. Information relating io the laases in place and associaied balances and
transactions 15 pravided below.

Terms and conditions of leases

Office and IT equipmeant

L eases for office and IT equipment are genarally for low value assets, except fur significant items such as pholocoplers. The
leases are for & vears with na renswal option, the payments are fixed, however some of the leases indude variable
payments based on usage.

Ofice and IT

§'000 Equipment Total
(a) Right of use assets
Opening balance st 30 June 2019 - =
Adoption of AASE 18 &t 1 July 20149 - first time lease repognition 124 124
Depreciatlon charge =B} = (31}
RIGHT OF USE ASSETS 93 93

2020 2020
(b} Lease liabilities
Leass liabiities - 28 _—
TOTAL LEASE LIABILITIES 28 T2

{1) The maturity analysis
The maturity analysis of lease liabililies based on confractual undiscounted cash flows is shown in the @ble below:

Total per

Stafement of

Financial

$ 000 < 1 year - 5years = § years Total Posifion

Cash flows 28 72 — 100 100
comiinusd on nexd pags Page 32 of 65
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 9. Leases (continued)
§ '000 2020

{¢) Income Statement

The smaunis recogrised in tha Income Statameant relating to leases whare Council is 8 lessee are shown below;

Interest on (ease liabilities 19
Depreciabon of right of use assels a3z
51

(d) Slatement of Cash Flows

Tatal cash cutilow for leases 24
24

Accounting policies under AASE 16 — applicable from 1 July 2019
Alinception of & coniract, Council assesses whalher a laase exlsis — | e does the sonfract convey the right 1o conirol the use
of an Identified asset for a period of time In exchange for consideration,

Council has elecied not to separate non-lease components from lease components for any class of asset and has accounted
for payments as a single component.

Al the lease commencement, Council recognises @ right-af-use assel and associated lease liability for the lease lerm,

The right-of-use assel 18 measured wsing the cost mode! where cost on inital recognilion comprises: the lease labilty, inibal
direct cosis, prapald lease payments, estimated cost of ramaval and restoration, less any lease Incantivas, The right-of-use
is depreciated over the leass term on a stralghi-ine basls and assessad far impairment In accordance with the impalrment
of assat accointing policy.

The lease lizbility is nitially recognised at the present value of the remaining lease payments at the commencement of the
lease. The discount rale is the rate implicll in the lease, however where this cannot be readily determined then the Council's
incremantal bormowing rate for a similar term with similar security (s used,

Subsagquent toinitial recognition, the lease liabillty is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, The
lzass liabllity Is re-measured when there is 2 lease modillcation, or change In estimats of the lease lenm or Index dpan which
the lease payments are basad (e.g. CPI).

Whare the leasa liability 1s re-measured, lhe night-of-use sssel s adjusted (o reflect the re-measurement,

Exceptions fo lease accounting

Council has applied (he sxeeplions to lease accounting for both short-term leases (6. leases with & term of less than or squal
te 12 manths) and leases of jow-value assets. Council recognises the payments associated with these leases as an expense
an a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leases al significantly below market value / concessionary leases
Council has elecled to measure the right of use assel arising from lhe concassionary leases al cosl which is based on the
associated lease liabiiity at initial recognition.

Accounting policy

When Council is a lessor, the lesss s classified as either an operaling or finance kease al inception date, based on whether
substantially &l of the risks and rewards incidantal to ownership of the asset have been transferred to the lesses, If the rigks
and rewards have been transferred then 1he lesse s classified as a finanoe |aase, olherwise [ s an operating lease,

Whan Coungil has a sub-leasa over an asset and is the intermediate lessor then the head lease and sub-leass are accountsd

for separatsly. The classification of the sub-lease |5 based on tha right-of-use azset which arises from the head lesse rathers
than the useful |ife of the underlying asset

confinued on next pags Page 33 of 66
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Note 9. Leases (continued)

Financial Statemanis 2020

I the lease contains lease and non-lease components then the non-lease components are acoountsd for in accordance with

AASE 15 Revenus from Contisots with Cusiormers,

The lease income Is recognised on a straightdine basis over the lease term,

Note 10. Payables and borrowings

2020 2020 2019 2019
5 ‘000 Current Non-current Curren! Non-current
Payables
Goads and servicas — oparating expendiure . 1,288 - 2,338 =
Accrued expeanses:
~ Salarles and wages 258 —~ 209 N
— Dther expenditure aceruals 452 - 402 -
ATQ — net GST payable/(receivable) {131) - 98 -
Frapald rales e o —Erl = S, i =
Total payables 2.018 3,048 -
Income received in advance (2019 only)
Payments recefved In advance - - - 151 - -
Total income recelved in advance B 151 -
Borrowings
Loans ~ secured | 218 801 %6 B
Total borrowings 218 801 __ 198 834
TOTAL PAYABLES AND
BORROWINGS 2237 _ 601 3.395 834
1 Loans are secured over the genedl rating inoome of Council.
Misciosures or (sbilty intrest rate risk exposures, fair value disclosures and securily can be found in Mot 14,
{a) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
a5 aF SRS Non-céafh changs a5 At JOWRY
— = e —— ———
A shange W
Openg i wilsloe actonnfig  Oiher fon-cash
g9 Beawe Ceghifiows. Acguinilos: fnges iy movee o Dlesng Seluice
Lzanz — securan 1,030 {210 - - - - B0
Liszaes flablitess — . (24} == = =3 e
TOTAL 1,090 234) - - 124 = 820
38 81 300018 = Navicashchenges _ _  wasidonsh
Coanirg Fair vl CHhEr nen-casn Chaming
5090 Rl “Cogh flows Aequigion _ahanges: Ayl balangp
Ltgng — &solred 1,228 {1861 = - - 1,030
TOTAL 1,228 (196) = - - 1,030
oorilinued o nexl pags Page 34 of 65
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Note 10. Payables and borrowings (continued)

$ ‘000 2020 2019
(b} Financing arrangements

{i) Unrestricted access was available at balance date to the following
lines of credit:

Credit cardspurchass cards &0 a0
Loan 1,820 2030
Total finrancing arrangements 1.880 2.090
Drawn facilities as at balance date:

— Credit cardsipurchase cards 12 18
—Loan &20 1,030
Total drawn financing arrangements - fag 1,046
Undrawn faciiities as at balance date;

—Credit cards/purchases cards 48 44
—Loan o 1,000 1,000
Total undrawn financing arrangements 1,048 1.044

Additional financing arrangements information

Breaches and defaulls
Curing the current and pricr yaar, thers wers no defaults or reaches on any of the leans.

Accounting policy for payables and borrowings
Council measures all financial lisbilities initially al falr value less iransaction costs, subseguently financial liabiities are
measured at amartised cosl using the affective Interss! rate method,

The financial liabiiities of the Council comprise trade payvables, bank and olher loans and finance lease labillties.

Payables
Thase amounts represant liabiiites for goods and services provided 1o the Counail pricr o the end of financial year thal are
uripaid. The ameunis are unsecurad and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition,

Borrowinas

Burrowings are Initially recognised al falr value, net of transaclion costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured al
amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount s recognised |n
the Income Statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective-interes! method, Fees paid on the establishment
of |oan facilittes are recognised es transaction costs of the loan to the axtant that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will b2 drawn down. In this case, the fes is deferred until the drawdown occurs. To the exdent that there is no evidence that
it is probable that some or all of the faciilty wiil be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services
and amartised ovar the peried of the Tacility. to which it relales,

Sorrowings are remaved from the Statement of Financial Position when the obligation specified in the contract (s discharged,
cancelled or explred. The differenne betwean the camying amount of a financial lability thal has been sxtinguished or
transferred to another party and the consideration paid, Including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is'
recognised In ather income ar finance cost

Saorrowlngs are classified as current labiliies uniess Council has an uncanditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least 12 months after the reporting dais

Finance leases {2019 only)

Legsas of property, plant and equipment where Council, as [essee, has substantially all the risks and rewsrds of awnarship,
are classiiied as finance [eases. Finance [eases are capitalised at the lease’s inception at the fair value of the leasad assels
ar, Mower, the present value of the minimom lease payments. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges,
arg Included in other shart-term and long-term payabies. Each lease paymen! is allocated between the [ability and finance

canlinued on next page Page 35 of 65
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 10. Payables and borrowings (continued)

cosl. Thie finance cost is eharged to the Income Statement aver the lease period 5o as lo produce a constant peniodic rale of
interest on the remaining balance of the liabllity for each period.

Note 11. Provisions

2020 2020 2079 2018
$ ‘000 Current  Non-current Current  Non-current
Provisions
Employes benefits
Annual leave o83 — 249 =
Long service leave 1,189 103 1,183 a7
Time in law 75 - a6 =
Sub-tatal —dgyregate employes banefits 2257 103 2278 ar
Assat remediation/restoration;

Assal remediation/restoration (fullire warks) S S 8 — 59
Sub-total - assst remediation/restoration = 54 - 54

Othear provisions

Othar 3 =, = =
Sub-total — other provisions 35 = =

TOTAL PROVISIONS 2.292 162 2228 146

§ '000 2020 2019

Current provisions not anticipated to be settled within the next twelve
months

The following provisions, even though classified a3 currenl, ars nol expected 1o be sellled
in the next 12 months.

Provisions — employess benefits 1

=] !-g

1,800

B0 1,800

18

Mature and purpose of non-employee benefit provisions

Asset remediation

Councll indertook comprehensive assessmant by independent valuer (Morrison Low) with a provision balance of $8.207.977
in 2019720 financial year Sukstantial fira to landfill site happened in June 2020 will require the key assumptions to be revisied
including timeframes, costs and type/nature of cells. due to the fact that the provision cannot be reliably messured, therefore
a reviged valus has nol been recarad,

Accounting policy for provisions
Provisions are recognised when Councll has & present legal or construstive obligation as & result of past avants, it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to setils the obligation, and the amount hias been relizbly estimated.

Where there are a nurmibar of similar obiigations, the likelihood that an outfiow will be required in settlemant is determined by
considering the class of obligations =5 & whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelfhood of an culfiow with respect to
any one iem included in the same ciass of obligations may be small,

Provisions are measured al the present valus of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the pressnt
obligation at the reparling date. The discoun! rate used to determine the present value reflects currenl market assessments

eonlinued on nexl page Page 36 of 65
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Note 11. Provisions (continued)

of the fime value of monay and the risks specific to the liabiity. The increase in the provision due o the passage of time Is
recognised as interest expense,

Employee banefits
Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries (Including noh-manetary benefits, annual leave and actumulating sick leave expected lo te
whaolly settled within 12 manths after the snd of the period in which the employess render the related service) are recognised
in respect of employees' sarviegs up Lo the end of the reporling pericd and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid
wher the liabilities are settled. The lability for annual leave and accumulating sick leave is recognised in the provision for
amployes benefits. All other short-term employes benafit obligetions are presented as payables.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liability for long-servics leave and annual leave that 15 not expected o be wholly settied within 12 months after Ihe end of
thie period in which the empioyees render the related sarvice |5 recognised in the provision for employes benefils and measured
#s the present value of expected future payments to be made in respact of services provided by emplovess up 1o the end of
tha reporting period using the projected unit credit method. Consideration is given to expecled fulure wage and salary levels,
experience of employee departures. and perods of ssrvice:Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at
the and of the reparting period on national govermment bonds with terms to malurity and currency thal match, as closaly as
possible, the estimated fulure cash autflows.

On-costs

The employes banefit pravistons include the aggregale on-cost lisbilltes that will arise when payment of urrent smployee
benefits is made |n fulure penads.

These amaunts nclude superannuation, payroll tax and workers compansation expenses which will be payable upon the future
payment of cartain leave lablities which employees are enfitled 1o al the reporiing: penod,

The obilgations are presemed as current lisbilities in the Statement of Financial Position if the Council does nol have an
uneonditionat right to defer sattiemeant for at leest 12 months after the reporting date. regardless of when the actual settlemant
i expacted to ocour

Note 12. Accumulated surplus, revaluation reserves, changes in accounting policies,
changes in accounting estimates and errors

(a) Nature and purpose of reserves

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve
The Infrastrusture, property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve is used to record increments [ decrements of
non-current asset values due to their revaluation

(b) Correction of errors relating to a previous reporting period

Nature of prior-period error

In accordance with applicable accounting standards Councll arranged to revalue Bulk Earthworks (non-depreciabla) in the
2019/2020 Financial Year |nvestigations concluded that in 2002 Counall decided o separately Identify Bulk Earthworks (non-
depreciabla) in the Financial Stalements al historical cost and & revaluation had nol been performed since. However, durlng
subseruent revaluations of Transpor Assets, Bulk Earthworks (non-dspreciatile) had been included and thersfore had been
oversiated in prior periods. The fair value of Bulk Earthworks (non-depreciable) included in the Transport Assets Is 5152 milllon,
The amount oversiated as a resull of this error was $14.3 million in-total.

The errors identified above have been cormected by restating the balances at the beginning of the earliss! perad presented
{1 July 2018) and taking the adjustment through to the revaluation reserve at that date. Comparatives have besn changed to
reflect the correction of errors. The impact an gach ling item |5 shown in the Ebles below. '

Changes to the opening Statement of Finangial Position at 1 July 2018
continuad an naxt pags Page 37 of 65
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Note 12. Accumulated surplus, revaluation reserves, changes in accounting policies,
changes in accounting estimates and errors (continued)

Statement of Financial Position

Original Impact Restated

Balance Increasa/ Balance
§ 1000 1 July, 2018 (decresse) 1 .July, 2018
infrastrueture, proparty, plant and equipment 207213 (14,081) 283,182
Total assets 319,958 (14,031) 305,927
Total liabilities 5,631 - 5,631
Total equity 314,327 (14.031) 300,296

Adjustments to the comparative figures for the year ended 30 June 2019

Statament of Financial Position

Original fmpact Restated

Balance fnoreases Balance
§ ‘000 30 June, 2019 (decrease} 30 Juns, 2019
infrastructurs, property, plant and equlpmert I L. 1 & - (14031) 328382
Total assets 374,643 {14,031} _ 360,612
Total liabilities 8803 = - 6803
Accumulated Surplus: 192,309 - 112,308
Asset Revaluation Raserve _ @BRTH (4031  241.700
Total equity 3GB,040  (14,031)  354.009

(i) AASE 15 and AASE 1058
The following approach has been apphied on ransitlon to AASE 15 and AASE 1058

+  Cauncl has not adopted the completed contradt expedient and herafors has not excluded revenue which was fully
recognised I previous years in accordance with the formar accounting standards and pronouncements

+  Councll has retrospectively restated contracts for modifications that ocourred before 1 July 2019 unless such contract
medification were minor.

Transfer of control to a customer — over time or at-a point in time

AASE 15 has specific criteria regarding whether control is transferred over time or at a point in time. The enfity has reviewsd
its contracts and concluded tnat the criteria for recognition over time is nol mel in seme gircumstances, In such cases,
revenue and related production costs will be recognised at the delivery of sach separate performance obligation instead of
owver the contract using & single margin. )

Prepald rates

Under AASE 1004, rates were recorded as revenue at the earlissl of recaipt of the funds from the ratepayer and the
beginning of the rating perlod. Under AASE 1058, prepaid rates are recognised &s a financial liabiity until the beginning of
the rating penod,

Grants - operating

Undar AASE 1004, most grant Income was recagnised as revenue on receipt. Under AASB 15, where an agresment is
snforceabls and contains sufficlently spediic performance obligations, the revenua is eithar recognised over ime as the
continged an next page Pape 38 of 65
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Note 12. Accumulated surplus, revaluation reserves, changes in accounting policies,
changes in accounting estimates and errors (continued)

wirk s perfnimed, or recognised at the point in tme {hzt the control of the services passes ta the customer

Grants — capital

Under AASE 1004, most grant monies were recorded as revenus an receipl Under AASB 1058, where Councll has

received assets (Including cash) to acquire or construct a non-financial asset, Ihe assel js 1o be conlrolled by Council and
the confract is enforceable, then the asset is racognised &s & contract lkability on receipt and recorded as revenue as the
performance ohligation o acquire or construct the assed |s complated.

$ 000

Opening contract balances at 1 July 2019

Contract liabilities
— Under AASE 1058
Total Cantract liabilities

Balance at

1 July 2019

1,323

"~ 1323

Comparison of financial statement line items under AASE 15 compared to previous standards for the

current year

The following tables show the impact of adopting AASB 15 and AASE 1058 on the Council's financial statements for the

year ended 30 June 2029,

Statement of Financial Position

§ '0og

Current liahilities
Contract llabiiities
Met assels

Equity
Aceumulaled surplus
Council equity interest

Total equity

Ingome Statemeant

$ '000

Income frarn eanlinuing spemtions

conlinued on naxt page

Carrying
amount per
Statement of Carrying
Financial amaunt under
Pogition under previous
AASE 15 and Reclassific- Remeasur- revenue
AASB 1058 ation ement standards
2073 e
356.8919 2.073 - 358,082
114,606 - 2,073 116,879
356818 - 2073 358892
356,919 - 2073 358,902
Income Incoine
Stetement and Statement and
comprehen- comprehen-
sive Income siva incame
under AASE 15 unider previous
and AASB Reclassific- Remessur- revenus
1058 ation ement standards
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Note 12. Accumulated surplus, revaluation reserves, changes in accounting policies,
changes in accounting estimates and errors (continued)

Incoms
Statement and
comprehen-
sive income
under AASE 15

and AASE Reclassific- Remeasur-

Income
Statement and
comprehen-
sive income
under previous
revenue

£ '0og 1058 ‘atfon omeri standards  Notes
Grants and contributions provided for )
capital purposes _ &BEE} 0 = 750 6,403
Total Inceme from continuing
operations 38035 - 750 _ 38785
Total Operating result from
continuing operations _ 3B - _ 7E0 4,670
Net operating resull for the year 3,820 - 7580 48670
Tetal comprahensive incoms 4233 - Fa0 4,883
Adjustments to the current year figures for the year ended 30 June 2020
Statement of Financial Position
Original impact Restated
Balance Increass/ Balance
$ ‘000 1.July, 2019 (decrease)  1.July, 2019
Contract liabilities = 12323 1093
Total liabilities . 65803 1,323 1,926
Accurmulated surplus __1r2308 o hER8) 110HEG
Total aguity 368,040 (1,323) 366,717

(ill) AASB 1B Leases

Council a5 2 lessae

[Indar AASE 117, Councll assessed whether leases were operating or finance leases, based on its assessmenl of whether the
significant risks and rewards of awnership had besn transferred o Council or remained with the lessor, Under AASE 16, thera
Is ne differertiation between linanoe and operaling leases Tor the lesses and therefore all leases which meet the definltion of
& lease are recognised on the staterment of financlal position (excepl for shart-term leases and leases of low-value asssts),

Council has used the sxception o lease accounting for short-term leases and leases of low-value assels, and the lease
expense relaling lo these leases is recognised in the Income Statement on a straight- line basis.

Practical expedients used on transition

AASE 16 includes a number of practical expedisntz which can beused on transition. Councll ras used the following expediants:

«  Conlraels which had previously been assessed as nol containing leases undar AASE 117 were not re-assessed on

transiticn to AASE 146,

+  |Lease liabililes have bean discounted using the Councll's incremental barrowing rate at 1 July 2099,

«  Right-of-use assetsat 1 July 2019 have been measured at an amount equal to the lease liability adjustment by the any

prepaid or scorued lease payments.
+ A single discount rate was appllad to all lsases with similar sharacteristies,

< Tha right-ol-use assel was adjusted by the existing anerous lease provision (where relevant) al 30 June 2019 rathar

than perform impairment lesting of the right-of-Lse asset.

continued on next page
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Note 12. Accumulated surplus, revaluation reserves, changes in accounting policles,

changes in accounting estimates and errors (continued)

«  Excluded lesses with an expiry date prior to 30 Juna 2020 from the S@tement of Financial Position, and lease expanses

for these leases have been recorded on a straighl-line basis over the remaining term.

+  Used hindsight whan determining the lease tem if the contract containg options to extend or terminate the lease.

Financial statement impact of adoption of AASB 16

Councll has recognised righl-of-use assets and lease liabiliies of §123,785 &l 1 July 2019 for leases praviously classified as

operating leases, or leases that are significantly beiow market valus which were previcusly off balance shest.

The welghted sverage lesses’s incremantal borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities al 1 July 2019 was 1.41%.

Operating lease commitments at 30 June 2019 per Council financial statements

Reconciliation of lease liabilities recognised on adoption of AASE 16 Leases

Operating lease commitments discounted using the
incremental borrowing rate at 1 July 2019

Add:

Lease liabilitias

Lease liabilities recognised at 7 July 2019

Note 13. Statement of cash flow information

i 'D-D«U‘ Ielrks

(a) Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents

Tetal cash and cash eguivalents per Statement of Financal Position -t
Balance as per the Statement of Cash Flows

(b} Reconclliation of net aperating result 1o cash provided from

operating activities

Net aperating result from Income Statement

Adjust for non-cash items:

Depreciation and amorisation

Mel Ingsesi{gains) on disposal of assats

Adoption of AASE 151058

Losses/(gains) recognised orf falr value re-measuremenits thiough the PAL.

— Revaluallon decretnents /[ impaimments of IPP&E direct 1o PEL

Share of nal (profitsilosses of assoniates/|aint ventures using the equity method

+i= Movement in operating assets and llabilities and other cash items:
Decrease/{incraasa) In receivables

Incresse/(decregse) in provision for impairment of receivablas
Decreasal(inarease) |n inventories

Increase/{decreasa) in payahbles

Increase/(decrease) in other accrued expenses payable

gontinusad o next paga
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Balance at
1 July 2018
= i
_ 124
2020 2019
_ 1746 10546
7,748 10548
3,920 14,630
6,837 5,394
i (B5)
{1,323) -
= 587
3,071 {3,733
(358) {1,293}
(585) 252
(184) (30}
{1.074) 810
99 370
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Note 13. Statement of cash flow information (continuea)

$ '000 2020 2019
Increase/(decrease) In other llabiitties {209) (83)
Increasal{decreasa) In contract labilities 2073 -
Increasa/(dacraase) in provision for employee benefits 45 a5
Increasaf{decrsase) in othar provisions - a5 =
Net cash provided fromi{used in) operating activities

from the Statement of Cash Flows 12,448 17.944

Note 14, Interests in other entities

Council's share of net assels
$ 000 2020 2019
Associales g6z 3,733
Total . BeZ 3733

Interest in Joint Arrangements

The following information s provided for associates that are Indlviduslly material to the Council. Included are the amounts as
per the Individual associates' financial stalements, adjusted for fairvalue adjusiments at acqlisition date and differences In
accounling policies, rathar thar the Counci|'s shara.

Counall 15 a member of the Far Morth West Jalint Qrganisation of Councils (FNWUJIO), Details of Coungil's membership and
paricipation Is as follows:

Legal Status of Joint Organisation
The FNWJD is a separately constituted entity pursuant to Part 7 (Sections 40000 lo 4007H) of the Local Government Act

{NSW) 1993, as amended, and the Local Govemment (General} Regulation 2008, The charter of the FNW.JO cah be found
herg: hipafwww famarthwestio nsw.gov.au/

The FNWJO was formed in July 2018 and has the same year end date as the Council,

What the Joint Organisation does

The principle purpose of the FNWJO is to establish strategic regional priorities and 1o provide regional |sadership to the
geagraphical area for which it serves, and to identify and take up opportunities for intergovermmental cocperation on matiers
relating to the joinl organisation area.

Joint Organisetion Participants

The percentage of ownership Interest held is equivalent to the percentage voting rights for all associates as follows!

FRWJO comprisas the Councils of Shirss Cobar, Bourke and Walgett in north westem NSV, The Board of the FNWJO
comprises of 3 voling members being the Mayors of the three mamber Councils, and non veting members being the Ganeral
Managers of the Shires of Cobar, Bourke and Walgett. as well as 3 appoinied members [rom the State Govemment and
Cabinet (nan-voting), Greg Lamant was appainted as the Executive Cfficer of the Board (non-vating) In 2018-20.

Councils powsrs of control or influence over the Jolnt Organisation

Cobar Shire Councll, as & member of the FNWJO, has one third voting right In respect to the desisions of the Board.
Councils financial obligation lo the Joint Organisation

In accordance with the Charter each mamber of the FNWJID contributes annusl fees towards the operation of the |aint
organisation. In 2018/2020 the contribution made by Cabar Shire Council was §11,010.

eontinued an next page . Pape 42 of G5
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Note 14. Interests in other entities (continued)

Councils liahility obligations in relation to the Joint Organisation

Members of the FNW.JO are indemmified from liability for funclions and duties camied oul or omitted honestly, in good Taith
and with dus care and dillsgence

Liability for operational losses or winding up of the FNWJO

The FNWJO has angaged ar Executive Officer on a standand Ioeal government contract for 3 years The contract in the initial
yiar (2018/20) 15 $75,000. A provision has been provided for ELE and funding from the initial start up of the FNWJO and will
cover the 3 vear panod,

All grant funding recelved and distnbutad through the FNWJO will have a 5% administration fee that will remain with the JO.
the FNWJG signed a contract to provide an Air Service to the lowns of Cobar, Bourks, Lightning Ridge and Walgetl, The
contract is Commerdial-in-confidence and has & clause that safe guard Councits for any long term lisbility which is contained
within the terminaten clausa, The airservice will be supported by funding provided to the FNWJIO from the State Govarmment

There are no liabiiity issues identified for Council In the shorl 1o medium lerm

Far North West Joint Organisation

Equity Method 000
Summarised Statement of Financial Position

Cash and oash equivalania B,333
Prepayments 285
Accrued Revenus 28
Tolal Assels 8.646
Taotal Liahilitias 6.657
Net assats 1,088

Summarised Statemant of Income and other Comprehensive Income

Total Revenue and ather incoma 2,004
Total Expandilure 3,309
Profit/(loss) from continuing operations {1,298}
Other Comprehensive Income *

Total Comprehensive Income {1,215)

Summarised Siatement of Cash Flows

(Zash flows from operating activiiies 4,102
Cash fiows from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities {7,588,
Met IncreasaliDecrease) in cash and cash equivalents (3,884

Reconchiation of camying amaount of interest in associate 1o summansed financial
information for associates accountad for Using the equity method

Cobar Shire Council's share of 33.33% of Net Assats: BEZ.
Carrying Amount G2
conlinued on next pege-: Page-43 of 85
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Mote 14. Interests in other entities (continued)

Accounting policy for associates
Imteresis In essocigles are scoounted for using the equity method In accordance with AASE128 Investiments In Associales
and Joint Venfures,

Undar this method, the investment s initially recognised as a cosl and the carmying amaunl is |noreased or decreased o
recognise the Council's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of ha Investes after the date of acquisition.

If the Council's share of losses of an assoclate equals or excesds its interest In the associate, the Council discontinues
recoonising its share of further lnsses.

The Courcl's shars in the dssociales gains or losses anising from fransacticons between itself and 15 associate are eliminated.

Adjustments are made {o the associates accounting policles where fhey are different from those of the Councll for the purposes
of the consolldated financkl staterments.

MNote 15. Contingencies

The fallowing assets and Habllities do not qualify for recognition In the Statemant of Financial Position; but their knowledge
and disclosure s considered relevant (o the users of Council's financial repart,

LIABILITIES NOT RECOGNISED

1. Guaranioes

(i) Defined benefit superannuation contribution plans

Councll s party o an Indusiry Dafined Benefil Plan undes the Local Governmisnt Superannuallon Scheme, named The Local
Sovermnment Superannuation Scheme — Poal B (the Scheme) which is a defined benefit plan lhat has been deemed o be 8
‘mult-employer fund' for purposes of AASBE119 Employes Benefits for the following reasons:

- Assals are not segregated within lhe sub-group sceording lo the employees of each sponsoring employsr

— The contribution rates have besn the same for all sponsoring employers. Thal &, contribution rates Rave not varied foreach
sponsorng employer secording b the expenence relating to the employess of that sponsoring employer

— Benefits for employees of all sponsoring employers are determined according o the same formulae and without regard to
the sponsaring employer,

- The same aclbanal assumptions are ocurrently used in respect of the emploveas of each sponsoring employer

Given the faciors above, each sponsoring emplayer is exposed lo the acluarial risks associaled with current and former
smployess of aller sponsating employers, and hence shares in the associated gains and Iosses (lo the extent that they ars
nat borne by members).

Bescription of the funding amangements.

Pooled employars are raquired to pay standard employer contributions and additional [ump sum contributions to the fund.
The standard employer contributions were datermined using the new entrant rale method under which a pontnbution rale

sufficient to fund the total benefits over the warking [ife-time of a ypical new entrant is calculated, The ourrent standard
employer contribution rates are:

1.9 times employes contrioutians |
Division B nar-180 Point Members, NIl for 180 Paol
Mambers
Divisian 2.5% salaries
Division O 1.64 fimes employes contribiutions]

*Far 180 Paint Members, Employers are required to contribute 7% of salaties to thess members” accumulation agtounts which
ara paid In addition to members'dafnied benafits.

confinued on nexd pags Pages 44 of 65
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Note 15. Contingencies (continued)

The past service cantribltion for sach Pooted Employer is = share of the total past service confributions of $40 million per
annum from 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2021, These past serviog conlributions are sued Lo malntain the adeguacy of the funding
position for the accrued liabiiities,

The adequacy of confributions ¢ assessed st each trisnnial actuarial nvestigation and menitored annually belwesn tHennkals

Cescriplion of the extent to which Council can be liable to the plan for ather Council's olfigations under the terms and condifions
of the mult-employsr plan

As slaled above, each sponsering employer (Councll) is exposed fo the acluarial risks associated with cument and former
employeas of other sponsoring employers and hence shares in the associated gains and losses.

However, There is no rellef under the Fund's trust deed for emplayers to walk away from their defined benefit obligations.
Under limited circumstances, an employer may withdraw from the plan when there are no active members, on full payment
of outstanding addifonal contributions. Therse is no provision Tor allocallon of any surpius which rmay be present at \he date
of withdraw! of the entity

There are no specific provisions under the Fund's Irust deed dealing with deficits ar surplus on wind-up,

Counail's expected contribution to the plan for the rext annual reporting period 18 §120,485 .28,

The estimated employer resarves nancial position for the Pooled Employers at 30 June 2020s:

[Employer reserves only * Smillions Asset Coverage
Asoatls 1.686.2

Fast Service Liabilities 1.773.2 85.6%
\Vested Banefits 1.767.5 96.5%

* excluding member accounts and reserves in both assets and liabilities,

The key economic long termy assumplions ussd fo calculate the present value of sccrued benefits ane:

[irvestment retum 5.755% per annum
Salary Inflation * 3.5% per annum
Inorease in CPI 2.5% per annum

Tha conlribution requirermnarnts miay vary from the currant rates if the overall sub-group expedencs s nat In line with the actuarizl
assumptions in determinirg the: funding orogram; however, any adjustment to the funding program would be the same for all
sponsoring emplayers in the Pocled Employers group, Please note the etstimated employer reserves financial position above
Is & preliminaru calculation, and once all the relevant infarmation has been retelved by the Funds Actuary, the final end of
year review will be completed around November/December 2020,

(ii) Statewids Limited

Council is & mermber of Statewida Mutual, a mulual peol scheme providing liabliity Insurance o local government.
Membership includes the potential to share in sither the net asssts or liabilities of the fund depending on its past performance.
Councll's share of the net assets or lisbilitles reflects Councll's contributions 1o the poot and the result of insurance claims
within each of the fund years.

The fulure realisabion and finalisation of claims incurred but not reportad to 30/8 this year may result in future lisbilities or
benefits a5 a result of past evants that Council will be reguired ta fund or share in respectively.

(ill) StateCovar Limited
Councll is & member of SiateCover Mutual Limited and holds a parlly paid share In the enity.

StaleCaver is & company providing workers compensation nsurance cover 1o the NSW lecal govermment industry ard
speciically Council.

cantinued on rexl rags Page 45 of 85
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Note 15. Contingencies (continued)

Council has a cantingent ligbility to:contribute further equity In the event of the erasion of the company's caplial base as a
resull of the company's past performance and/or claims expenence or as a result of any increased prudential requirements
from APFA,

Thesa future equity contributions would be required o maintan the company's minimum level of nel assets n aceordance
with ils licence requirements.

(B} Third party clalms

The Councll Is involved fram time to time in various chaims incidental to the amdinary course of business including claims for
damages relating io its services.

Counit believes that it Is appropriately m*.rarad for &l claims through Its Insurance coverage and doss not expact any rmaterial
liakilities to aventuats.

(if} Potential land acguisitions due to planning restrictions imposed by Council
Council has ciassified a number of privately owned land parcels as local open space or bushland,
As-a result, where notified In writing by the vanous owners, Caouncil will be required to purchase these land parcels.

Al reporting date, reliable estimates as o the value of any potential labllity (and subsequent land assat) from such potential
acquisitons has nol been possible.

Note 16. Financial risk management

Risk management

Council's activilies expose it Lo & variety of financial risks including (1) price risk, (2) credit fisk, (3) liquidity risk 2nd (4) interest
rale risk.

The Council's averall risk management program focuses on the unprediciability of firancsl markets and sesks to minimise
potential advarse effects on the financial performance of the Cauneil,

Council does not engags in transactions expressed In fareign ocurrencies and s therefore not subject Lo foreign currency rek.
Financial risk management Is carrled out by Cauncil's finance section under policies approved by the Counail,

A comparison by category of the camying amounts and fair values of Council's financial assets and financial Habllities
recognised in the financial statements is presented below.

Carrying value  Carrying vslue Fair value Fair value
5 ‘000 2020 2019 2020 2019
Financial assets
Measured at amortised cost
Cash and cash eguivalanis 7,748 10,546 7,746 10,548
Recaivablos 4,781 3,840 4,781 3840
[nvesimanis
- Financial assets st amortised cost’ 16,000 13000 15000 13,080
Total finrancial assels = 27.527 2386 - 295 27,386
Financial liabilities
Payables 28 3,048 2,038 3.048
Loansiadvances g20 1,030 a20 1,030
Leasa ||abilities 100 - 1060 -
Tatal financial liabilities 2998 4078 2958 4078
confnuad on nexl pEge Faga 46 of 65
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Note 16, Financial risk managemenl (continued)

Fair value is detarmined as foliows:

+ Cash and cash equivalents, receivables, payables —are estimated to be the carrying valua that approximates markst
value.

+  Borrowings and held-te-maturity investments — are based upon estimated fulure cash flows discounted by the current
mikt interest rates applicable 1o assets and labilities with similar risk profiles, unless quoted market prices are available.

- Financial assets classified (1) ‘at fair value through profitand lass' or (i) ‘available-for-sale’ —are based upon quoted
market prices (in active markets for identical investments) at the reporting date or indepandent valuaton,

Council's objective Is to maximise (s relum on cash and investments whilst maintaining an adequate lavel aof liguidity and
presarving capital,

Council's finance area manages the cash and Investmants partiolic.

Coundil has an imestment policy which complies with the Local Government Act 1883-and Minisier's investmenl order B25.
This pulicy Is regularly reviewed by Councll and it's staff and an investment report is tabled before Councit on a monthly basis
gatting aut the portfalio breakup and its performancs as required by Local Governmenl reguiations.

The risks associated with the Instruments held are:

+  Price risk - Ihe risk [hal the capilal vaiue of Investments may fluctuale due to changes in market prices. whether
there changes are caused by factors specific 1o individual firancial instruments or thelr issuers or are caused by faclars
affecting similar Instruments traded in a markat.

< Interest rate risk — the risk thal moveimants In Interest rates could affecl retums and income

+  Llguidity risk — the risk that Council will not be able to pay ts debis as and when fhay fall due,

< Credit risk — the rigk that the invesiment counterparty will nol camplete their obligations particular to s financial
Instrumnent, resulling In a financial loss o Coundil - be itof a capital or income naturs.

Council manages these risks (amongst othar measures) by diversifying its portfollo and only purchasing investmants with high
credit ratings or capltal guaraniess.

(a) Markel risk — price risk and interesl rate risk

The Imipact an result for the year and equity of a reasonably possible moverment in the price of investments held and interest
rates is shown below, The ressonably possible movements were determined based on historical movemenis and eccnomic
conditions in place at the reporting date

Increase of values/rates Decresse of values/rates

§ 000 Profit Equity Profit Equity
2020
Fossible impact of & 1% movement In intarest raiss 7 T (7 (77
2019
Fossible impact of a 1% movement In inlerest rates 108 1085 (105) (108)

{b) Credit risk

Councll's major recelvables comprise (i) rates and annual sharges and (i) user charges and fees.

oonlingad on next page Paga 47 of 85
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Note 16. Financial risk management (continued)
Council manages fhe credit risk associated with these regeivables by monitoring outstanding debl and smploying stringent
debl recavery procedures, Councl also encourages ratepayers o' pay their rates by the due date Through incenlives,

The credit risk for llquid funds and other shorl-lerm financlal assets Is considered negligible, since the counterparties are
reputable banks with high guality extarnal oredil ratings.

Thiere are no significant concentrations of credit rsk, whethar through exposure to individual custormers, specific Industry
sectors and/or Fegions.

The fevel of outslanding receivables is reporiad to Coundil monthly and benchmarks are set and monitored for acceptable
colleciion performance.

Councll makes suitatie provision for doublful recsivatiles as required and carres out oredit cheaks on most non-rate deblars,

There ars no mataral raceivables thal have bean subjected to a re-negotiation of rapayment tarms

Credit risk profile

Receivables — rates and annual charges

Credit risk on rates and annual charges is minimised by the ability of Councll lo secure a charge over the land ralating 1o the
debits — that is, the larid can be sold to recover the debt. Council is-also able to charge interast on overdue rates and annual
chargas at higher than market rates which further encourages the payrmen! of debt

Not yel < 1 year 1- 2 years 2- 5 years > 5 years
£1000 gverdie overdue overdue overdue averdue Total
2020
Groas camying amoun - 334 228 50 a8 B2
2019
Cross camying amoun - 735 10 120 155 1,410

Receivables - non-rates and annual charges

Councll applies the simplified approach for non-rates and annual charass deblors lo provide for expecled credit |osses
pragerioed by AASE 8, which permits the use of the ifelime axpected loss provision. To measure the expected credit losses,
non-rates and annual charges debtars have been grouped based on shared credit nsk characteristics and the days past due,

The loss allowanss provision asat 30 June 2020 is determined as Tollows. The expected cradil losses Incorporate fonward-
looking infermation,

Mot yet 0-30days  31-60cdays 61 - 90 days =91 days

000 avardue overdue overdie overdue overdua Total
2020

Gross camying amoun 3,666 (&9} 130 159 451 4,200
Expected loss rats (%) 0.63% 0.63% 1.63% 0.63% 0.63% 0.63%
ECL provision ) (14 4 | 3 ag
2019

(Gross carrying amount 1,849 41 274 B T15 3405
Espacted logs rata (%) 0.B0%; 0 B0 0.80% 0:80%: 0.80% 0,80%
ECL provision 18 3 2 i a7

(¢) Ligquidity risk
Payables, lease ligbilities and borrowings-are both subject to liquidity risk = the risk that insuffislent funds may be an hand o
measl payment obligations as and when they fall due.

eanlinued on rex page Fage 48 of 65
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Note 16. Financial risk management (continued)

Council manages this risk by monitoring its cash flow requirements and liquidity levels and mantaining an adequala cash buffaer
Fayment terms can (in extenuating circumstances) alse be extended and averdraft Taciities iiised as required.

Baorrowings are also sublect 1o interes! rate risk — (he risk that movements In intarest rates could adversely affect funding
costs and debi sanvicing requirements. Council manages this nisk through diversiication of borrowing types, maturities and
interest rate structures. The finance leam regularly reviews Inlerest rats movements o determine if il would be advantageous
to refinanoe of renagotiate pan or all of he loan partfolio,

The timing of cash flows presented in the table below to sette financial liabilities reflects the earliest contractual setflement
datas, The timing of expected outfiows |s not expected 1o be matenally different from contracted cashflows.

The amounts disclased in the table are the undiscounted conlracted cash flows for non-lease liabilities and therefure the
balances in the table may not equal the balancesin the Statemant of Financlal Position due ta the effect of discounting.

Weighted

average  Subject payable in: Actual

interest io no 1-5 Total cash carrying
$ '000 rate maturity 'Y vears *°YS outnows  values
2020
Trade/other pavablas 0.00% - 1.BET - - 1.867 1,847
Logns and advantes 522% - 218 B0 R 820 820
Total financial liabilities — 2,088 601 _ 2887  26E7
2019
Trade/othar payables 0.00% - 3,048 - - 3,048 3,048
Losns and advances 6.22% - 267 831 - 1,158 1,080
Total financial liabilities - 3315 8391 - 4206 4078

Loan agreement breaches _
Detall hers any breaches (o lnan agreamenis which have neoumed during the reporting year

Note 17. Material budgel variations

Council's ariginal finrancizl budgel for 1920 was adopted by the Councll on 25/06/2020 and s unauditad,

While the Intome Statement included in this General Purpose Financial Statements must discloss the onginal budgst adopted
by Council, the Local Government Act 1993 requires Councll 1o review its financial budget on a quarierly basis, so that il is
able to manage the varous variations betwesn actuals versus budgst thal invariably cceur throughout the year.

This niote sets out the detalls of material variations between Council's orlginal budget and its actual resulls for the year as
per the Income Statemen! - even though such variations may have been adjusted for during each quarterly budget review.

IMaterial varialions represant those variances betwsen the onginel budget figure and the actual result that amount o 10%
or mare,

Variatlon Key: F = Favourable budge! yvariation, U = Unfavourable budgel variation.

_ 2020 2020 2020
§ ‘000 Budget Actual ey - Varlance ——
REVENUES
User charges and fees 16,568 13,669 (2,897) (17 U
confinued on next page Fage 49 of 63
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Note 17. Material budget variations (continued)

2020 2020 2020
§ 000 Budget Actual sweenes Varfance

User charpes and lees ware down on budgst due 1o olosure for aneg quaner of a number of community facilities under the
guidance to reduce the spread of COVD-19.

Fenovations to Lillanne Brady Village saw up to one quarer of the rooms closed for varying perads as the upgrade acoursd.
Waler usage was aiso down significantly due lo the drought, limiting the supgly for sale,
Capital grants and contributions 8,030 5,653 (2,37T) (30Y% U

Timing differences for grants assaciated with major projiects - none of this revenue was forgone, but some of the prajects
extended info the next financial year with the maltching payment also crossing years,

EXPENSES

Other expenses 58674 2,694 2.980 53%. F
The decrease In ather axpenses s In line with the reduced aoitivity due to COVID-19,

Net lossas from disposal of assets 180 98 84 47% F
The actual loss on disposal included $38k on a land parcel sold 1o the NSW Governmenl 1o sstablish the new hospital, As
parl of this armangement Council received a $8m investment tawards the Lillanne Brady Village.

Joint ventures and associates - net losses - 3,071 {3,071) = U

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating aclivities 4,153 12,448 {1,705} (12)% U
Usar charges and fees weare down on budget dus to closurs for one quarer of a number of cammunily faciliies under the
guidance 1o reduce the spread of COVD-19

Cash flows from invesiing actlvities {(17,327) (15,014} 2,313 (13)% F
The budgetad plant and sguipment has bean carriad forward 1o 2020021

Cash flows from financing activities: (258} (234) 25 (10)% F
The varlance is due 1o a reduction i interest payments on barmowings;

Note 18. Fair Value Measurement

The Coundil measures the following asset and liability classss at fair value on a recurring bass:
~ Infrastructure, property, plant and equipmant

The falr value of assels and liabilities must be estimated in accordanca with varlous accounting standards for either recognition
and measurement requirements or for disclosure purposes,

AASE 13 Fair Value Measurement requires all assels and liabllities measurad at fair value to be-assigrisd to a Javel in the
fair value hierarchy as follows:

Level 1: Unadjusted quofed prices in active markets for identical assets or llabiiifies that the enfity can access at the
measuramant date,

confinusd an nsxl page Page 50 of G5
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Note 18. Fair Value Measurement (continued)

Firsnolal Sialemenls 2020

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices Included within levél 1 Ihat are observable for the asset or liabiity, eitier diracty

or indirectly,

Level 3: Inpuls for the assel or llabillty thal are not based on obsarvabla market data (unchservable Inputs)

(1) Assets and liabilities that have been measured and recognised at fair values

2020

Recurring fair value measuremenis
Infrastructure, property, plant and aquipment
Operational land

Cammemurily land

Land improvemenls — depreciabia
Man-specislised bulldings

Specialised bulldings

Other struchuras:

Roads

Slommwater drainage

Water supply network

Sewarage nelwork

Library boolks

Cither asssts

Recrmafional Assals

Totfal infrastructure, property, plam and
aquipmment

2019

Recurring fair value measuremants
Infrastructure, property, plant and sguipment
Operations land

Communily 1and

Land improvements - depreniable
Mon-specalised bulidings

Spacialisad bulldings

Other siructuros

Hoads

Slormwater droinage

Water sipply network

Sewsrage netwiork

Litsrary books

Other assels

Recrantional Agsats

Total infrastructure, proparty, plant and
equipment

' Fair value measuramant hivrarchy

Mote (sl capitn!l WIP is not included above sinca it |2 carmed at cosl

During the year. there wara no transfers betwean level 1 and level 2 fair value hierarchies for recurring falr value

eirilinued dn next paga

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Date of Quoted  Significant . Significant
latest prices fn  observable  unchserv-
valuation  active mkis Inpists  able Inputs Total
BB = 3,830 2 3.4930
E0E - 28T - 2,871
IsEe - - 708 AT06
G - - 4,818 4,818
k3T AL B - - 17438 17438
02N G - - 845 B4
g - - 248277 24537
I8 - - 4878 4976
e ] - - 21,904 29,904
0020 - - 11,068 11,168
SIEE0TR - - 3 3
hih - - a2 3z
A = = asm 4663
&.a01 A4 854 324 /60
Fair valup moasurement hisrarchy
Level 1 Levael 2 Level 3
Dats of Quoted  Significant  Significant
latest pricesin  obsarvable  tnobsary-
valuation  active mkts inputs  able inputs Total
30MEHA - 3,833 - 3,833
BOMDEAE - 2,029 - 2889
30068 - - 3,522 3522
[P I - - 4,864 4,84
JNMEMS — - 17.164 17964
A0EME - - ‘bb3 663
MRS - - 244,853 244 853
30618 - — E.056 5.056
E0EM9 - - 11,120 11,120
30818 = - 11316 11,315
NGNS - = 1 1
MiA - = 5 ) 3
[ - - 4,532 4,652
-~ __ B.6EZ 303013 09,675
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Note 18. Fair Value Measurement (continued)

measurements,

(2} Valuation techniques used o derive level 2 and leval 3 fair values

Where Council is unable to derive fair valuations using quoled markel prices of idertical assets (ie. level 1 Inputs) Council
irstead utiisesa spraad of both observable inputs (level 2 inputs) and unohservabie inputs (fevel 3 inputs).

The fair valuation techniques Council has employed while utilising level 2 and level 3 Inpuls are as Tollows;

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (IPP&E)
The fair valuation techinigues Councll has employed while utllising fevel 2 and leve! 3 Inputs are as foliows:

Level 2 inputs

Operational and Community land
Operational, Crown & Community Land are based on the Land Value provided by the Valuer-General,

Level 3 inputs

Buildings - speciadlised and non-specialised
Non Specalised & Spacialised Buildings were valued by Australis Asset Advisory Group as at 30th Jupe 2018 using both a
cost and marke! approach,

An Independant valuation is conducted avary five years.

Land improvements
Land Impraverments are valued al curment replacement cost

Other structures
The majority of this class of assat was valued by Australis Asset Advisory Groupas at 30th June 2016 using the cost approach,

Infrastructure roads, bridges and footpaths
Valuation of roads was undertaken by Morrison Low as-at 30 June 2018, based an the current repladement cost of the road
assats within Councll's netwark.

Stormwater, water and sewer infrastructure asseis
Wiiter Supply and Sewerage Network assets ware valued by Australis Assal Advisory Group asat 300h June 2017 at Currenal
Replasemant Cost and utilising Fair \Value measurament.

These assesis are Indexed each year in line with the NSW Referarics Rates manual as published by the Office of Water

Stermwater assets weare valued by Morrison Low as gt 30th June 2018, at Current Replacement Cost Assals within

this ¢lass comprise pit, drains; pipes and culvarts.

Library books

The library books are reported at fair value in the notes, however, due to the nature of these tems they are valued at casl
Thera are no major variances between Lhe fair value and carrying amount of these assets, The cost of hese assets were
bazed on invoices at the ime of capitalisation.

Open spacesirecreational asseatls

Assets within this class comprise leisure and sporfing euipment and facilities within cemeteries, parks, ovals sparting
complexas and othar recraational areas.

The Cast Approach is utlised with each assel being componentised into significant parts, with different usaful Inves-and
taking inte account a range of factors. These assels have been classified as Level 3 valuation inputs,

There were no changes in valuation techniques from prior years

(3) Falr value measurements using signiflcant unobservable inputs (level 3)

a. The following tables present the changes In laval 3 fair value asset classes.

canfinued on next page Fage 52'of 65
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Cobar Shire Council

MNotes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 18. Fair Value Measuremenl (continued)

2019

Opening balance

Purchases (GBV)

Depraciation and impalrment
Transfers to Frofit and Loss
Revaluation movements to ARR
Closing balance

2020
Opening balance
Closing balance

§ '000

2019

Opening balance

Purchases (GBV)

Depreciation and impaimmant
Transfers to Profit and Loss:
Revaluation movements 1o ARR
Closing halance

2020
Opening balance
Closing balance

Financial Statements 2020

Non-
specialised Specialisad Other Stormwater
buildings buildings stiuctures Roads drainage
Nan-
specislised Specialised Other Stormwater
buildings buildings structures Roads drainage
4,876 16,552 568 207,370 5,133
56 976 - 2,754 -
(163) (405) {29) (3,677} {77
- (587) 13 38,406 -
a6 228 - - =
4 864 17,164 553 244 853 5050
4,864 17164 563 244 853 5,056
4,864 17,1684 563 244.853 5,056
Water supply Sewerage Recrestion
nietwork network  Other assets assels Total
1,177 10,954 35 3,849 280,915
a8 548 - 878 5,248
(271) (363 (2} {195) {5.182)
176 178 - — 38,186
0 e =2 : __3E3
11,120 1V.315 i3 1.532 298,490
o 1eer o 11315 - 4.532 _ 299,490
11,120 1.315 33 4532 299 400

c. Bignificant unobservable valuation inputs used (for level 3 asset classes) and their relationship to falr value.

Valuation technigue/s

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment

Non-Specialsed Buildings

Specialised Buildings

Olher Structures

Roads, Bridges and Foolpaths

Stonmwater Drainage

continyed on next pege

CostMarkal

CostiMarkal

Cost

Unit rates per m2 or length

Unil rates per m2 of length

126

Unobservable inputs

Gross replacament cost
Aszet condition
Remezining usaful fife
Sross replacement cost
Assel condition
Remaining usatul life
Gross replacement cost
Asset condition
Remaining usetul fife
Gross replacemant cost
Assel condition
Reamaining usaful fife
Gross replacement cost
Assel condifion
Remaining useful life
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Cobar Shire Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 18. Fair Value Measurement (continued)

Valuation technique/s:
Water Supply Cost
Sewerage Network Cast
Library Baoks Cost
Recraational Assels Cost

(4) Highest and best use

Finsnnial Statemsnts 2020

Unobservable inputs

Gross replacement ocost
Asssl condition
Remaining useful life
Sross roplacement cost
Assef condition
Ramaining useful life
CGross raplacement cost
Remaining useiul life
Gross replacerment cost
Asset condition
Remaining useful life

All of Coungi's nen-financial assels are considersd s being ulilised for their highest and best use.

127

Page 54 of 65



Cobar Shire Council Financial Statemants 2020

Notes to the Financial Statemenis
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 19. Related parly disclosures

Key managernent personnel

Key managemant persannel (KMP) of the Cotincll are thase persans having the autharity and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Coundll, directly o
indirectly.

The aggregate amount of KMP compensation included in the Income Statement is:

5 '000 2020 2019
Compensalion:

Short-term benefits - 1,258
Toital B53 1,256

Note 20. Events occurring after the reparting date

Councll s unaware of any malteral or significant ‘non-adjusting events! that should be diselosed.

Note 21. Slatement of developer contributions

Under the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1879, Coundil kas significant obligations o provide Section 7 11 (contibutions tewartds provision or improvernant of amenities o
samvices) infrasirochore in new releass areas.

It is possible that the funds contributed may be less than the cost of this infrastructurs, requiring Council to borraw or use general revenus to fund the difference,

Summary of contributions and levies

&5 at JV0619 as at /0620

confinued on next page Page 55-of 65
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Cobar Shire Council
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for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 21. Statement of developer contributions (continued)

5000

§ ‘000

‘Open spacs.

Commamunity faciilies

S04 gontribwulions 2012

5711 contributions — under a plan

Tetal 37,11 and 57.12 revenue undeor plans

564 cantribulicng.
| BF.4 pianning agresmenis
Tolal contribulions

57.11 Contributions — under a plan

CONTRIBUTION PLAN NUMBER 1
Operl spaca

Communily facilithes

504 contributions: 2012

Tolal

as at 30/06/19

Opening

‘Balance

Opening
Balance

H
17

5TH
579
49

193
871

1o}
1
348

579

Caontributions
recalved during
the year

Cash

Contributions
received during
the year
Cash

274,
274

interest.

in y=ar

fmterest

=
=
= U T - T - T - - ST T I 3 -

=00

Financial Staiemants 2020

as at 30/06720

Cumuiative
Held as intermal
assel  ducipayable)
) Cumulative
Held as interial
resiricied Borrowings
asssl  duspayable)
10 -
171 -
_  Ben =

Bl

BEA
7l =
194 -
1,128 -
10 -
171 -
mmn_ =
261 -

Page 58 of 65
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Cobar Shire Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
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Note 22. Result by fund

§ ‘000
Income Statement by fund

Incame from continuing operations
Rates and annual charges

User charges and fees

Interest and invastment revenus
Other ravenues

Grants and contributions provided for nperating purposas
Grants and contributions provided tor capital purposes

Total income from continuing operations

Expanses from continuing operations
Employee bensfits and on-costs
Borrowing costs

Materials and conlracts

Depreciation and amortisation

Other axpenses

Nel losses from the disposal of assels

Share of interests in joint ventures and asspciates using the equity

method
Total expenses from continuing operations:

Operating result from continuing operations

Net operating result for the year

Met operating result attributable to-each council fund

Net operating result for the year before grants and

contributions provided for capltal purposes

Firancial Slataments 2020

NE. All amounts disciosed above are gmss — that is, Ihey include infernal tharges and recaveries made belween fha funds.

111 Genarsl lund rafers 1o all of Council's aalivilies excent for ils wites and sewer aofivilles which are Gsted separately,

§ '000
Statement of Financial Position by fund

ASSETS

Currant assels

Cash and cash eguivaients
[rwestments

Receiables

inverionies

Total current assets

MNon-current assols

Feceivables

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
Investrments accounted for using the-egquity method

conllinisd on nest paga

130

General ! Wafer Sewer
2020 2020 2020
5,030 287 B56
11,479 2178 14
284 36 36
2,039 = =
10,058 &8 -
2,837 2,884 132
31,527 54N 1.037
12,618 a5a 144
B3 = =1
5,194 2437 586
5812 i 254
2,594 - -
96 - -
3,671 - —
_ 29569 3.562 _ 984
1,958 1,809 53
1,958 1008 53
1.858 1,905 53
(@7e) (575) |78
General ' Weter Sewer
2020 2020 2020
1,856 2,963 2,837
15,000 - -
3,837 520 116
1,280 - -
22.073 3473 2,953
308 - -
288,874 24,504 11,444
662 - -
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Cobar Shire Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 22, Result by fund (continued)

Righl of use assats
Total non-current asseis

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Current liabllities
Fayables

Contract liabilities
Lease liabiities
Barrowings

Provisions

Total current/liabllities

Mon-current liabilities
Leasa liabiitias

Burrowings

Provisions

Total nonscurrent liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

Mel assels

EQUITY

Accumulated surplus
Revaluation reserves
Council equity interest

Total equity

Financial Slatements 2020

General | Water Sewer
2020 2020 2020

_ 8 = =
299,937 24,6504 11,444
322010 27977 14,397
1,718 282 17
2,073 " -

28 - -

218 - =
2,292 = B
5.331 202 17

72 - -

601 - -

W2 - - - =

835 - .
7i66 282 17
314.844 27,695 14,380
84,214 26,623 3,869
230,630 872 10.511
114,844 27,605 14 380
314844 27,695 14,380

NE. All amounts disclosed above are grass — that Is, they Include intamal charges and recoveries mada betwsan the funds, Assets and
liabilifies shown in the water and sewer columng are restricted for use o |hese goiivilies

i) Gareral lund refers o 2l uf_::aurvnll's aciivities except for it water and sewir activilles which ars lisied separately.

Note 23(a). Statement of performance measures — consolidated resulis

§ '000

1. Operating performance ratio
Total continuing operallng revenue excluding
capital grants and contributions less cperating

axpensas ¥

Amounts
2020

1,434

Indicator

Total continuing operaling revenus excluding
caplial grants-and contributions

2. Own source operating revenue ratio
Total continuing operating revenue excluding all

granis and contributions '

32,382

22,236

Total continuing operating revenie |

3. Unrestricted current ratio

contimued on next pags

38,035

131

2020 2019

4.43% 1.88%,

58.46% 56.22%

Prior perfods

2018

2.86%

55.35%

"Benchmark

>0.00%

=60.00%
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Finanuial Slatemsniz 2020

Note 23(a). Statement of performance measures — consolidated results (continued)

Amounis
000 2020
Current assets less all exiernal restrictions 15,086
Current liabiliies less specific purpose lablilies 2,159
4. Debl service cover ratio
Operating rasull before capital excluding Interest
and depreciationfimpairment/amonisation ' 8,354
Principal repayments (Stalameant of Cash Flows) 317
plus borrowing costs (Income Statement)
5. Rates, annual charges, interest and
extra charges outstanding percentage
Rates, annual and exira charges outstanding 688
Rates, annual and exira charges collectible 6,648
6. Cash expense cover ratic
Current year's cash and cash equivalents plus all
tarm deposits 22,746
Manthly paymenis from cash flow of operating 2,308

and financing activities

Indicator

2020

6.99x

26.35x

10.05%

9.85
imths

Prior periods
2079 2018
551 607
21.55x% 6 52x%
10.12% 5.18%

8.55 B.73
mihe mths

Benchmark

=1.50%

=2.00%

=10.00%

=3.00
mths

(1} Excludes falr value Incremants on invastmeant priperies, myerssl of revaluaiion decrements, rmversal of impalrmaent losses on
recaivables, net gain on sale of assels and rel share of interasts in joinl veniures and associates using the eouity methed and inciudas

pensioner rate aubsidies

) Extludes impairmant/revaluation decraments of IPPE, (air value decraments on Investment properties, net loss of disposal of assats
and nat lasg on shara of interests in mlni wiiniurgs and assoolales using e aguly method

132
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Note 23(b). Statement of performance measures — by fund

3 000

1. Operating performanca ratio

Total continuing operating revenus excluding capital grants and conlribulions lsss
pperaiing sxpenses 2 .

Total esntinuing operaling revenus excluding capital grants and contributions |

2. Own source operating revenue ratio
Total continiing operating revenle exoluding capital grants and contribiations

Total sontinting operating revenle

1 Unrestricted gurrent ratio
Curienl sssets less all edemal restrictions

Currenl llabiiities less spacific purposa liabilities

4 Debt servico covear ratio
Operating resull before capital exdluding interest and
depraciationfimpairment/amertisation

Principal epayments (Stalement of Cash Flows) plus borrowing costs (Income
Statement)

5. Rates. annual charges, Interest and extra charges outstanding percentage
Rates. annual and extra charges outstanding

Rates, annual and exitra charges collectible

6. Cash expense cover ratio
Currant year's cash and cash equivalents plus all lerm deposits

Paymments frum cash fow of operating and financing aclivities

{1)- (2] Rafer 1o Motes al hate 208 above.

3} Carmtd hund refirs b all Sf Cislincs meliviiies sxeapt for b witler ahl seaer selivililes wheh are Int=d saparately

General Indicaftors *

2020

8.61%

59.73%

G.99x

26.44x

12.06%

7.34
mths

2018

315%

62.01%

20.40x

13:30%

724

mithe

Water Indicators

2020 2019
(37.69)% (5.72)%
45.68% 21.84%
12.32x 5.7hx
0.00%:  0.00%

Financzl Statamants 2020

Sewer Indicators
2020 2019

(B.73)% (1D5T)%

87.27%  92.09%

173.71x  51.80y

0.00% i (v

Benchmark

=0.00%

>60.00%

>1.50%

=2.00x

=1 0.00%

=3.00
mths
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Note 23(c). Statement of performance measures — consolidated results (graphs)

1. Operating performance ratio
13

ﬁ-ﬁmmenlaw on 212:!19!21‘.1 resurl
Purpose of operaling e _
z performance ratio
& L]
-
| E . a.43 |
{ | “This rafio megsums Councd's®
166 ) Thia risio m-cansidared snfiffockesy 1 his been
Befvigvement of sonlaining ; EEER fni s
‘ l i mparating expendiivre wihin anfieved with = autﬂar;:urgsz_:nm poaitian and othae
- spurating rvissn. -'
‘ 2018 2018 g | |
Benchmak; — = DO0%: | Ralio sofieviss banchmark

Sourge of benchmark: Code of Agegunting Preciice and Financial Reporting #28

2. Own source 2 operating revenue ratio.

il )
|

0 Purposs of own source ‘
o S se33 spaf_ I operating revenue ratlo
%3 -
% |
3
10 This ralle moaduress Fscal
_ flewlbity. il i the degree ul
IR relifrme on externat funding
‘BOUrEes Auch ia oporatng granis
in and M‘Iﬁﬂﬂl.ll‘lﬂl'll—
3018 2019 00 |
Banchmark: — = 60.00%

Source of senchmark: Code of Acgounting Practics and Fnanciel Reporing #28

3. Unrestricted current ratio

0

it

Mokl

2018

Purpese of unrestricted '
current rallo

To aednsy the pdequacy of
wirklng eapadl and |18 anilily g
=afiefy abligstians in the shor
L for the hrostrictied actaties
o Gananell,

B Fatio s outside berchmark

Commentaty on 2019/20 esull

k=
a6.487%,

L

Ceninsil Has simost schisved the berchmerk and has
e e w1 titlrg margimalty undaer

[ Ralio acheeves benchmark
BB Ratio s outside benchmark

Commentary on 201920 resull

Iﬂnu.mil hias @ consarvative vesiiment and barrowing
palicy. Provided o salsianiony ofesatling perfarmancs
Is sctsavad s llquidity shauld be angird

Banchmark: — = 1,50

Source of henchmark: Code of Accouniing Practioe and Finanoal Reporting 428

aontiniied on el page
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I Ratin achieves benchmark
I Rafio is outside benchmark
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Note 23(c). Statement of performance measures — consolidated results (graphs)

4, Debt service cover ratio
" |

_ Commentary on 2018/20 result
1w FPurpose of debtsemvice e o - __
| | pover ralio
i3
= 30 ' '
|
i
| 218 |
This relio measurss ha
il wlﬂ"ﬁnm' ﬂ‘ Wh!i::: | Crunei hnm-m Mwmﬂﬂ:‘gi -ntl_lm
] u .
" 5.52 l “]FH'“ il iom ‘ mlmwhdﬂu sarvim cover afiz |
| a !
e 215 00
L in . - _
Benchmark: — > 2.00% | Balio achieves benchmerk
Source of nenchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporling #24 B Ratio s outside benchmark:

5. Rates, annual charges, interest and extra charges outstanding percentage

s ] Til
Purpose of rates, Commentary on 2019720 result
s annual charges, |
10,12 1065 | L
L) e intarest and axtra
charges autstanding
" —_ ~
=
a
- . 5.18 .
’ ' This i margimally friare than the beochnar bt s
mnamm magnr;gh;ﬁmmgf " 'considernd MIMW Thia Incresan inwater uss
A charges on E-uundll'! liuidity and ‘dug m-herﬁd:]uﬂnnhhuwhuﬂ influsnced the
mm”w mmﬂl‘ g | | Figure, Councif mmm@mﬂmﬂt In
' 2018 2018 2020
Beachfmare — < 10.00% | Raifio achisves banchmark
Source of benchmark: Code of Acsounting Practice and Financial Reparting #28 Bl Ratio s cutside benchmark

6. Cash expense cover ratio

134 |

- Commentary on 2019/20 raault
- - Purpose of cash =
# il axpanse cover ratio ARTOEO At G.f
&73 2019720 ratio: 5
E
a
E Ths figesdity rato ndicatss the |
numibeer of mantts a Souncil Caouncl mairains sireng conirsl owes its reourmem
cantinueg paying for s inmadiate mxparaiiirg and ay per pravioss rlles maliiing a
sxpEnsss withou! additions cash : hiigr ligundity layest
nficw. |
T 0 2018 2020 '
Benchmiet — = 3. 00mihs. i Haunammﬁnmum
Saurce of benchmerk: Gode of Accaunting Practics and Financial Reporting 228 Bl Ratio is outside benchmark
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Mote 24, Council informalion and contacl details

MNote 24, Council information and contact details

Principal place of business:
Linslay Strest
Cobar, NSW 2835

Contact detalls

Mailing Address:
PO Box 233
Cobar MSW 2835

Telephone: 02 6636 5808
Facsimile: 02 68368 5850

Officers
General Manager
Patar Ylatko

Responsible Accounting Officer
Kym Milles

Public Officer
Pater Viatko

Auditors
Aldit Office of NSW

Other information
ABN: 71 579717 155

Opening hours:
Bam 1o d4orm
Monday to Friday

Internet:  wyww.cobar.nsw.goy.au
Emaii: mall@cobar, nsw.gov.au

Elected members
Mayor
Lilllane Brady

Councillors

Fetar Abboll
Tracey King
Janing Lea-Barratt
Christopher Lehmann
Jarrod Marsden
Feter Maxowall
Jdulie Payne

Bob Sinalair
Harey Toomay
Kate Wintdars
Peter Yench
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Report on the general purpose financlal stetements
Cobar Shire Council

To the Councillors of Cobar Shire Council

Opinion

| have audited the accompanying financlal staterments of Cobar Shire Councll {the Councll), which
comprise the Statemant by Coundcillors and Management, tha Income Staterment and Statement of
Comprehensive Income for the vear ended 30 June 2020, the Statement of Financlal Posltion as at
30 June 2020, the Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for tha year then

endad and netes comprising 8 summary of significent accounting policies and other explanatory
information.
In my opinion;
. the Coundll's accounfing records have baen kept i accordance with the reguiremants of the
Loca! Governmant Act 1993, Chaptar 13, Part 3, Division 2 (the Divislon)
. the financial statements:
- have been prepared, in all matenal respects, in accordance with the requiremsnts of this
Division
- are congistent with the Coundil's accounting records

- present fairly, in all materal respects, the financial position of the Council a3 at
30 June 2020, and of i financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordanca with Australian Accounting Standards

- all information relevant to the conduct of the eudit hes bezn obigined

- no matetial deficiencias in the accounting records or finencial siatements have come to light
during the audit.

My opinion should be read in conjunction with the rest of this repart

Lewn) 18, Dariing Park Towar 2, 204 Suasax Streol, Sydney N=wW 2000
BP0 Box 12, Sydney KNS 2007 | 02 8376 7104 | £ 02 9275 7175 | maldRaudikrow. gov. a0 | IHSH . AEw .00 30
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Basis for Opinlon

| conducted my audit in accordance with Ausfrallan Auditing Standards, My responsibilities under the
standards are desctibed in the ‘Auditor's Responsibllitles for the Audit of the Financial Statements'
eaction of my report.

! am independent of the Councll in accordance with the requirements of the:

. Australlan Auditing Standards

. Accounting Professlonal and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 ‘Coda of Ethics for
Profagsional Accountants {including Independenca Standards)’ (APES 110).

t have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordsnce with APES 110.

Farllamant promotes independence by snsuring the Auditor-General and the Audit Office of
New Smith YWales are not compromised in thalr roles by:

. providing that only Parllament, and not the executive government, can remove &n
Auditor-General

mendating the Auditor-(Ganeral as auditor of councils
. praciuding the Auditor-General from providing noen-audit senvices.

| believe the audit evidence | have cbialned s sufficient and apprapriate to provide e basls for my
aurdit apinion,

Othar Information

The Counil's annual report for the year endad 30 Jure 2020 indudes ather information in addidon to
the financial statements and my Independent Auditor's Report thereon, The Councillors are
ragnonsible for the other information. Af the date of this Independent Auditor's Report, the other
information | have received comprise the spacial purpose financlal statements and Special Schedules
(the Schadules).

My opinicn on the financial statements does not cover the other information. Accordingly, | do nat
axprass arry form of assurance conciusion on the other information. Haowever, as required by the Local
Govemment Act 19593, | have separately sxpressad an opinion on the special purpose financial
atatermeants and Special Schedule - Permissible Income for ganaral rates.

In connection with my audht of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the othar
information and, in doing =0, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or my knowledge obtainad in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materally
misstated.

If, based on the work | have performed, { conclude there is a material misstatement of the cther
information, | must report that fack.

i have nothing to report in this regard.

The Councillors’ Responsibllitles for the Financial Statements

The Counclliors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Local Govamment Aot 1993, and for such
Irternal coniral as the Councillors determine Is necessary fo enabla the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statemants that ara fres from material misstatement, whether dus to fraud
wr error,

In preparing the financlal stataments, the Counciilors are respongsible for assessing the Council's
ability to continue as a going concern, disciosing, as applicabls, matters related to going concern and
uging the going concem basis of accounting.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Stateaments
My objectives are to:
« obtaln resgonable assurance about whether the financiel stetements as a whole are free from

material misstatameant, whether due i fraud or error
. tzsua an Indepsndent Auditor's Repar including my apinion,

Reasonabla assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee sn sudit conducted In
aceordanca with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect materizl misstaterments.
Misstatemsnts can atiss from fraud or emor. Misstatements are considered material If, indhvidually or
in aggragate, they could reascnably be expected to influencs the sconomic decislons usars take
based on the financial staterments,

A dascription of rmy responsibilities for the audit of the financial stataments 13 located af the Auditing

and Assurance Standards Boerd website www agash gov. awfauditors responsibllitissfard pdf. The
descrlption forms part of my auditor's report.

The scope of my audit does not include, nor provide assurance:

. that the Councll camied cut 2 activitles effactively, efficiently and sconomically

. on the Original Budget Information Included I the Income Staterment, Staterment of Cash Flows,
arl Note 17 Material budget variations

. on the Special Schedules. A separate opinlon has besn provided on Speclal Scheduls -
Parmissible income for general rates

- about the security and controls over the electronic publication of the audited financia!
statements on any website whare they may he presented

- about any other information which may have been hyperinked toffrom the financial statemants.

Wy

Unalb Jeoffrey
Delagate of the Auditor-General for New Sauth Wales

21 October 2020
SYDMNEY

139



OBAR
S‘Mr-
) |

COUNCIL

140



YEAR TO DATE 2020/2021 {as =t 04 No

21

SRS

viember 20

Sudivinion Code 100 &5 Il rmaies o devslogamnnt pxiritiiilonm

Saclion 94 Cornbations Plan 583
Devaloper Flim 10/

4031136

Divaloper Connbion Fan 000

3¢ Opn Sphco

Davelopar Coribuen Fian 2000

404 - Citar Lozl Inliastiicturs Coriibuion Plan 3012

Clevelopment Type A

Dl B-H Ha

poning Balance

alyfr

S
13,4352

92,158,158

105,682,537

&6, 715 63

B8,756.4

57,
B,.724.17

TOTALS!

T1,581,80
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|, Kym James Miller , Responsible Accounting Officer for Cobar Shire Cauncil have formed the view
that the financial position at Q1 2020/2021 having regard to the adopted estimates is satisfactory.

ol
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Lobar Shire Cound|
01 Budgat Revlow
Attachment 3 to Report Ol Sudget Review

Tabha 1 - Varlations to Oparating Surphss f Defidt

1018

Increased grant cantrdbution for Pulpafs Road

Loeal Avads and Community Infrastructurs Fund grant
Resourcas for Reglans grant

Repair program approvad

Reduction in Regional Rozds malmanance

Flre contral at fandfil

Contribution to contaminated lande project

Rezervolr repair

Grey mard] grax cancelad

Ineraased AMCC contract tasks

This 1 split Into
Operating
Caphal Grants and Contribition:

Tebla 2 - Variations to Capital axpanditure

Pulpulla Road

The Wool Track

Drummared Park toilets

)

Sealing Linsley 5t car park

S5qaling cinama car park

Tonwr. Beartification

Extenstan of reticulation upgrade program
Drainage works - mdustriat estate

Prepane business case*

“ i the project diel nor pracew BiE bl nred bo by sganoes

Revigad budpet farecast

Operating surphus adopted
Apvisions

fws Caapitol Gremits omdd contribebions

Undertying surplus / deflck

Impact on Oparsting
Value Surplus f Deficit
% 250000000 5 2500,000.00
$  LOBSO00.00 5 1,085,000.00
$ 440000000 & 2,400,000.00
5 400,000.00 % 400,000.00
$ 400000000 % 400,000.00
5 100,000.00 -4 200,000.00
% 20,000.00 -3 20,000.00
- 2500000 -4 25,0001.00
% - & -
& - 5 -
% 8,540,000.00
5 155,000.00
&  #385,000.00
$ 259000000
§ 250000000 5 2,500,000.00
5 200,000.00 5 B00,000.00
- annooo.00 & 300,008.00
5 250,000.00 $ 550,000.00
- 17500000 % 175,000.00
5 11500000 % 115,000.00
g 4500000 % 145,000.00
§ 300000000 5 2,000,000.00
137500000 5 1,375.000.00
- 5000000 3 5,000
% 8,510,000.00
General Fund Water Fund Swwar Fund AN Furwds
$ 18,643 56400 -4 53422000 ¢ 26241400 §  19,311,75240
$ 554000000 % 3,000.000.00 & 554000000
§  2a545000.00 % 300000000 5 SO000000 S5 2834600000
% 537,568.00 -5 584,230.00 -§ 23758600 -5 204, 24800
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MINUTES OF THE RISK AND AUDIT COMMITTEE HELD iN COUNCIL
CHAMBERS and BY CONFERENCE PHONE ON THURSDAY 27 JUNE 2026
COMMENCING AT 1.00PM

Present

Mr. Paul Mann in the chair - remotely, Mr. Geoffrey Langford, Councilor
Peter Abbott {Deputy Mayor) and Councilor Bob Sinciair,

Ohservers

Messrs. Peter Viatko, Kym Miller, Alex Hardy (Prosperity Group} remotely,
Ms. Brin Jones, Ms. Sandra Davey, Mr. Paul Hennock, remotely, Ms.
Summer Patterson and Ms. Charlene Madden.

Fooinote; My, Trald Jeaflicy af AONSR tred i foin bl wos wralbls 10 sonmect,

Confirmation of minutes

RESOLVED: That the Minutes of the Risk and Audit Committes meeting
held on Thursday 26 March 2020 be confitmed as a true and correct record
of the proceedings of that meeting.

Cle Abbodt/ Clr Sincloir CARRIED

Buainess arising from the minutes

There was no business arising which was not listed as & separate agenda item.

Interim audit jetter and report and report on Interim Audit

This docnment had been distrfbuted and spoken to by Mr, Herdy. On belance
there were no major issues and the Covid inspired remote audit had been
undertaken by both parties in a satisfactcry manner. Any cutstanding matters
at year end would be encapsulated in the year and Management Letter and
the date of the next meeting would be sef fo allow this to be presented in a
timely manner.

RESOLVED: That the report and commentary by M. Hardy be received
and noted

Cir Abbott/ Geoffrey Langford CARRIED
Internal audit function

Luke Group had completed their preliminary review of Cobar Shire
Couneil’s asset managemsnt capabilities compared to previously compieted

reviews. Mr. Jeff Shanks had given g verbal overview at the March meeting
with the expectation that the formel report would be evailable at this next

i ﬂ‘? A ,
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mneeting. The report had been districted but with insufficient time to consider.
This was due to a delayed delivery from the Luka Group which was focusing
on Cavid issnes for its clients. Mr. Miller further advised that for the matter
to be priortised Council’s the role of Director of Enginesring would need to
be filled.

Luka Group were also preparing a brief for a frand review. This matfer was
deferred.

RESOLVED: That the repart from Lukz Group be received and noted with
an expectation that it would reappear on a future agenda.

Clr Abbott/ Clr Sincigir CARRIED

Rolling tagk list

An updated rolling task list which reflected matters arising from external
audits was distributed.

RESQOLVED: That the report and commentary by Maz. Jones be received and
noted

Cir Abbott/ Geoffvey Langford CARRIED

Ypdate on BCF and DRP

This project was reportzd as still being on target for conzideration of a draft
by 30.06.2020.

RESOLVED: That the update on these plans be received and noted,

Cir Abbott/ Clr Sinclair CARRIED
P. Hennovk — Stafewide

Mr. Hennock reparted that Council were participating in Statewide's risk

programs to 2 safisfactory level and on balance were on target with the
mderwriter’s risk management expectations.

CV 1% update

The direct impact of Covid 19 on Cobar Shire Council’s finances and
workforce were continuing to be minimal. The mejor cost centre impacted
was child care with the federal governments free period. This had however
been compensated for with direct fimding to the Shire.

The Shire waz focused on preparing projects to be ‘shavel ready’ for any
government stimulus fimding that may become available,

Lo
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RESOLVED: That the report and commentary by Mr. Viatko be received
and noted

Cir Abbott/ Geoffrep Langford CARRIED

Cobar Water Board

The Juterim Management Letter was presented by Mr, Hardy. There were no
issues with which to be concermed.

Clr Abbott/ Geaffrey Langford CARRIED

Landfill vchabilitation

A report and indicative costings had been compiled by asset conmultants

Morrizon and Low. It had been disttibuted {o the committes, bit 2o anatysis

had been done on it by CSC staff yet.

RESOLVED: That the report and commentary be received and noted.

Clr Abbott/ Clr Sinclair CARRIED
fiware replycemen rade

The working group have met szveral times and assisted by a template from

Kempsey Council have scoped our reguirements. An expression of intersst

process will be conducted 4o defermine en appropriate list of firms fo be

invited to fender.

RESOLYED: That the report and commentary be received and noted

& Langford / Clr Sincilair CARRIED

{yiber business

Mr. Viatko indicated that the NSW ICAC had enquired inic somes maiters
and that he would report next meeting. {eonfidential}

Mr. Miller reported that a significant review and waining program in
procurement was being undertaken with a view of achieving procurement
efficiency and compliance with ali policies and legislation.

There being no firther businass the meeting was declared close at 2.37pim

Rowe
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MINUTES OF THE ORDINARY MEETING BY VIDEQ CONFERENCE
HELD ON 28th OCTOBER 2020 IN THE COBAR SHIRE COUNCIL
CHAMBERS, 36 LINSLEY ST, COBAR., NSW.

PRESENT - VOTING BOARD MEMBERS

Name Crganisation
ClIr Lilliane Brady OAM | Mayor, Cobar Shire Council (Chair)
Clr Barry Hollman Mavor, Bourke Shire Council
Clr lan Woodcock OAM| Mayor, Walgett Shire Council-joined meating 10.40am

PRESENT - NON-VOTING MEMBERS

Name Qrganlsation
Mrs Leonie Brown AfGeneral Manager, Bourke Shire Council
Mr Petar Viatko General Manager, Cobar Shire Council
Mr Mike Urguhart General Managsr, Walgett Shire Council
Mr Gireg Lamont Executive Officer, FNW.IO
Mr Peter Evans QLG Central West & Orana Council Engagement Mgr
Mr Ashley Albury RNSW Central & Far Wast Diracior
Mr Alex Hardy FNWJO Auditor Prosperity Advisers Group
Mr Unaib Jeoffrey Audit Office of NSW

FRESENT — OBSERVERS — Cr Peter Abboit, Deputy Mayor, Cobar Shire Council &
Mark Rlley {(Bourke Shire Council}.

MEETING OPENING — CHANGE OF MEETING VENUE DUE TO COVID-8 VIRUS

The meeting was opened at 10.05am by the Chair, Cir Lilliane Brady OAM. The Chair
also noted that the Ordinary meeting was being conducted via Cobar Shire Council using
FNWJO Zoom and thelr video conferencing facilities.

AGENDA ITEM 1 - APOLOGIES

Nil

AGENDA ITEM 2 - DECLARATIONS ON INTEREST

Mark Rlley dsclared a non-significant, non-pecuniary interest in the Westem Airlines

contract item in Committee of the Whole as a regular passengar on Air Link flights
Dubbo/Bourke/Bubbao.

MOTION (Clr Hollman/Clr Brady) that the declaration of interest by Mark Riley be noied.
CARRIED

THIS IS PAGE 1 OF THE MINUTES OF THE DRDINARY BDARD MEETING OF THE FAR NORTH WEST IOINT DRGANISATION HELD ON
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SUSPENSION OF STANDING ORDERS

MOTION (Clr Holiman/Clr Brady) that the meeting be suspendsed at 10.05am to allow the
Election of the Chair 1o take piace and to recelve the prasentation from the Audlior & Audit
Office of NSW who were present by zoom at 10am. CARRIED

AGENDA ITEM 3 — ELECTICN OF CHAIR & DEPUTY CHAIR

Chair

Tha Executive Officer (as Retuming Officer) indicated that only one nomination had been
receivad for the positlon of Chair, that being Clr Lilliane Brady, who was duly nominatied
by Clrs Woodcock and Brady and accepted by Clr Brady. The Executive Officer then
declared Clr Lifliane Brady fo be the Chair of the Far North West Joint QOrganisaiion of
Coungclls for the ensuing twelve months.

The Chair thanked the Board for their confidence in her leadership and support as Chalr.

Deputy Chair

The Retuming Officer declared that there were no nominations for the positlon of Paputy
Chair however it is noted that it is the intention of the Board to altemate the role when an
election for an Acting Chair is required.

MOTION {Cir Hollman/Clr Martinez) that & be noted when an Acting Chair slectlon is
required, the appoinfment Is to be alternated betweean the Mayors of Walgett and Bourke.
CARRIED

PRESENTATIONS in relation to ltem 7{c) AUDITORS REPORT FNW.IQ ACCOUNTS

Presentations by Alex Hardy {(Audior- Prosperity Adviser Group) and Unaib Jecffery
(Audit Office NSW) at 10.16am until 10.20am on the FNWJO Audit. Key points raised
wera — Auditors declared an unqualified Audit Report for the 4/7/18 — 30/6/20 Audit period;
their focus was on grants being properly aliocated and records of them; balance sheet/
profit and loss were looking heathy; thanked Sandra Davey {Financial Accountant) at
Cabar Shire Council and the Greg Lamont (Executive Officer) for their assistance. No
questions were raised by the Board members,

The Chair thanked the Auditor and Audit Office for their presentation & attendance.

MOTION (Cir Holiman/Clr Brady) that the presentation from the Auditor & Audit Office
NSW be noted and considered as part of Item 7{c). CARRIED

Cir Woodcock joined the meeting at 10.40am

ClIr Holiman advised the meeting that with Ross Earl leaving Bourke Shire Council in
October 2020, Leonie Brown will be Acting General Manager until February 2021 when
Mark Riley will take over the role until the new Council is elected in September 2021 and
determines the appointment of a Genaral Manager.
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RESUMPTION OF MEETING

MOTION (CIr Hollman/Clr Wocdcock) that the mesting be resumed at 10.41am
CARRIED

AGENDA [TEM 4 - CONFIRMATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE ORDINARY MEETING
HELD ON 287 JULY 2020

MOTION (Cir Hollman/Clr Woodcock) that the minutes of the Far North West Joint
Organisation Ordinary meeting held on 29" July 202¢ be confirmed as a true and
accurate record of proceedings. CARRIED

AGENDA ITEM 5 - MATTERS ARISING FROM MINUTES 29% July 2020

Nil.

AGENDA ITEM 8 — CHAIRPERSONS MINUTE

Chair submitted a late verbal address to the meeting thanking everyone involved in the
establishment of the Joint Grganlsatlon noting the achievements and prograss to date,
The Chair also noted the recent retiremsnt of the former General Manager Ross Earl from
Bourke Shire Council and thanked him for his contribution to the Far North West Jaint
Organisation of Council's Board in belng part of it since inception from 4% July 2018.

MOTION {Cir Holiman/Cir Woodcock) that a letter of appraciation from the Chair be sent
to Ross Earl thanking him for his contribution to the FNWJO since Inception from 4% July
2020, CARRIED

AGENDA ITEM 7 — EXECUTIVE OFFICERS REPORTS — PART A (ACTION)

a)  2020/2021 Budget Review as at 30 Saptember 2020

MOTION (CIr Hollman/Cir Woodcock) that the budget review of the FNWJO as at 30%
September 2020 be noted. CARRIED

b} Monthly Investment Report for July, August & September 2020

MOTION {Clr Woodcock/CIr Mollman) that the Investment Report as at 30% June 2020 be
noted. CARRIED
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G) FNWJC Auditors Report 4/7118 — 30/6/20

MOTION {Cir Woodcack/Clr Hollman) that the FNW.JO Board:

1. Receive and adopt the Engagement Closing Report;

2. Endorse the Financial Statements and Management Representation lettsr for signature
by the delegated officars. CARRIED

(d}. Adoption of FNWJO Financial Statements 4/7/18-30/6/20.

MOTION {Cir Holiman/Clr Woodcock} ihat

1. It be noted the Far North West Joint Crganisatlon of Councils (FNWJO0) Financial
Statements for the period 4™ July 2028 {o 30% June 2020 were referred fo the
Indspendent Audiior and the NSW Audit Office as per the adopted Audit
Engagement Plan timetable;

2. FNWJO resolves that the Financial Statements for 41" July 208 to 30T Jung 2020
is presented in accordance with the Local Government Act 1993 and the
Regulations made thereunder (as amended}, the Accounting Standards, the Local
Government Code of Accounting Practice & Financial Reporting and presents fairly
the FNW.IQ's operating result and financial position for the period;

3. It be noted the Financial Statements for 4% July 2018 to 30" June 2020 are
presentaed in accord with the FNWJO's accounting and other records and that the
FNWJO Board andfor Managemeni is not aware of any maiter that would render
this report false or misleading in any way;

4. FNWJO adopt the Statement by Members of the Board and Management pursuant
to Sectlon 413(2)(c) of the Local Govemmeant Act 1993 {(as amended) and resolve
that they be slgned and atiached to the year-end accounts by the Chair, Cir Hollman
and the Executive Officer;

9. The Exscutive Officer as the Responsible Accounting Cfficer be authorised to sign
the Representation Letter from the Indepandent Auditor on behaif of the FNW.JO,

CARRIED

(8} Adoption of the ENWJO Annual Performance Statement Report 1/7/2019-30/8/2020.

MOTION (Clr Holiman/Cir Woodcock) that the FNWJO adopt the Annual Performance
Report 2019/2020 and Executive Officer submit to the Offlce of Local Government,
CARRIED

(f) ENWJO Adeptlon Model Code of Conduct & Administration Procedures.

MOTION (Cir Hellman/Cir Woodcock) that the FNWJO adopt the amended Model Cods
of Conduct and Administration Procedures as attached to the report. CARRIED

g} Contaminated Land Managemeni Officer EPA Project

MOTION (Clr Hellmary/Clr Woodcock) that the FNWJO request a contract variation to the
EPA CLM Project for the following changes:

(a) to extend the engagement of the current contractars uptil 30% Juna 2022, subject to
satisfactory performance, to fulfil the rele of "Project Officer” unill the completion of
the CLM EPA Project in lieu of the employment of a Project Officer from 8 January
2020;
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{b} to request the EPA to fund the second year of the CLM Project for $140,000 as per
the original three (3} year projeci grant approval;

(c) 1o request the EPA to uiilise the underspend of the first year of funding for the
acquisition of a suitable industry property daia base system far the three councils in

the FNWJO
{d) the extension of the engagement in {a) is subleci fo engolng funding by the EPA for
the second yearin {b). CARRIED

AGENDA ITEM 8 — EXECUTIVE OFFICERS REPORTS — PART B (INFORMATION)

a} Pathways & Compliance Calendar Status Update.
MOTION (Clr Woodcock/Clr Hollman} that {he information be noted. CARRIED

b} Staiement of Sirategic Regional Pricrities Update

MOTION {Clr Woodcock/CIr Holiman) that the information be noted. CARRIED

¢) Joint Organisation Chairs Forum Update

MOTION {Clr Woodcock/Cir Hellman) that the information be noted. CARRIED

d} JO Capaclty & Capability Building OLG Grant $150k Update

MOTION {Clr Hollman/CIr Woodcock).

1. That the FNWJO proceed to engage an appropriate consultani, as a matter of
urgency, for the development of a Tourism Marketing Strategy for submission to
the Board in December 2020 at the latest, for implementation commencing 1
March 2021.

2. That funding of the expected $20,000 for the Consultancy be sourced from the
FNWJO General funds.

3. That Bourke Shire Council {BSC) take the lsad in engaging a suitably qualifled
consulfant to develop the Strategy, in consultatlon with both Cobar and Walgett
Shire Council Tourism Officers undertaking the following actions:-

a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f
g)

BSC wlll engage a suitably qualified consultant to undertake the project
within the required timeframe ie a meeting of the FNWJO Board In
December 2020;

BSC will engage with both Walgett and Cebar Toursm Offlcers for input;
BSC will copy the Executive Officer into correspondence in regards tc the
ehgagemsent of the consultant and progress with the Strategy;

BSC in conjunction with the Executive Officer will complete the necassary
engagement documents required by the Contractor;

BSC will undsrtake the Project Management of this project as an in-kind
cohtribution to the project — there will be no fees payable to BSC;

BSC expects that the Sfrategy will be available to present to the FNWJO at
a meeting in December 2020;

The Strategy wlil determine the opportunities and processes required fo
market the three Councils to achieve the best cuicomes from the $150,000
funding received for Capacity and Capability Building; and
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h) The Strategy is to be implemanted by the commencemsnt of the 2021 tourist
season - March 2021, CARRIED

@) Cross Border Tourism Prometion Updais

MOTION (Clr Woodcock/Clr Hollman) that the information be noted. CARRIED

) Regional Roads Reviaw Update

MOTION (Cir Woodcock/Clr Hollman} that the information be noted. CARRIED

g) Western Region Water Update

MOTION (Clr Hollman/Clr Woodzock) that the information be noted. CARRIED

h) Service Agreement with Cobar Shire Councll Update
MOTION (Clr Woodcock/CIr Hollman) that the information be noted. CARRIED

i} Woestarn Sport Steering Committee Updaie

MOCTION (Clr Woodeock/Clr Hollman) that the informatlon be noted and Executive
Officer to request the Steering Committee to pursue appropriate high proflle male and
female National Rugby League {NRL) player/s to visit the Far Westermn Reglons and fo
conduct NRL games in the reglon to promote the involvement of youth, men and women
in a sport such as Rugby Leagus and for community resilience. CARRIED

j} Ear West Regional 1 eadership Executive Updats

MOTION (Cir Woodcock/Cir Hollman} that the information be noted. CARRIED

AGENDA ITEM 8 — EXECUTIVE OFFICER REPORTS - PART C (CONFIDENTIAL)

To be dealt with in conjunction with item 12

AGENDA ITEM 10 — MATTERS OF URGENCY

(a) Western Area Health Services Preposed Changes — Concerns were raised by the
Board members with changes proposed to the Visiting Medical Officer (VMQ's)
service to hespitals with a shift to the "Virlual Rural Generalist Service” (VRGS)
proposing affer hours consuliation to be by tala health means when there are
Issues with the unreliahility of the intemet, poor mobile phone service and the
impracticality of it to an ageing populatlon with a high level of chronic disease and
low level of lifa expectancy, the socio economic demographic etc., in the Far
Westem Regions of NSW .

Discussion alsc revolved around the unique issues that the Far Westemn
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communitles face, the lack of understanding by the politicians and bureaucrats of
the issuss and need to retain the existing VMO’s sarvice levels with face to face
consultatlons and to involve the mayors of the FNWJO, Bogan, Brewarrina,
Coonamble, Warumbungle, Gilgandra, etc., In the delegation to the Minister.

Other issues raised were the nurses ware overworked, are being asked to do more
and are concerned they are dalng tasks that they are not qualified or insured for.

MOTION (Cir Woodcock/Clr Hollman} that as a matter of urgency, the FNWJC Board:

{a} Forward a leter fo Mark Spittal, Acting CEQ, Westemn NSW Area Health District outlining
the concerns af the FNWJO Board in relation fo the proposed changes to the Visltor
Medical Officer (VMC's) system with a shift to the "Virtual Rural Generalist Service®
{(VRGS), with the lack of consultation, the reduction in service levels, the unreliability
of the internet, poor mobile phone service and the impracticality of the proposed
changes to an ageing population with a paricular socio ececnomic demographic,
efc., in the Far North Wastam region;

{b) Organise a meeting with the Minister for Health, Hon Brad Hezzard, in either Sydney or
the Central Wast, to outline the concems that the proposad system wen't work in Far
Wastern NSW,;

{c} Issue a media release from the Chalr outlining the support of the three mayors of Cabar,
Bourke and Walgett Shire Councils for the concerns raised on behalf of their communlties
with the proposed changes outlined;

{d) Copies of the correspondence (s-c) be forwarded to the Dseputy Premier, Hon John
Baritaro; Minister for Wastern NSW, Hon Adm Marshall; Member for Barwon, Roy Butler
and Faceral Member for Parkes, Hon Mark Coulton. CARRIED

AGENDA ITEM 11 — CORRESPONDENCE

MOTION {Cir Woodcock/Cir Hollman) that comrespondence be noted CARRIED

AGENDA ITEM 12 — COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE

MOVE INTO COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE AS AT 11.30am

MOTION (Clr Woadcock/Clr Hollman} that the Board resolves into a Commities of the
Whole, to consider lterm 8, Part C (Confidential) of the Executive Officer's Report, as per
the Agenda, the following item:

9(a) Management of Western Airline Services Contracts — Review and Update.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 9 (2A) of the Local Govemment Act, the
Exacutive Officer Is of the opinion that consideration of this item is likely to take place
whan the meeiing is closed to the public for the following reason: Sectiocn 10A(2)(c)
information that would, if disciosed, confer a commercial advantage on a person with

whom the councils condugiing {or proposes to conduct) business. CARRIED

Public Requests: Pursuant to section 10A {2) (a} & (c), Local Government Act 1983, there
were no public present or submissions received for anyone to make reprasentations to
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the Board Meeting before the meeting was closed, as to whether the meeting should be
closed to consider the identified reports or they be dealt with in open session,

RESUME CRDINARY MEETING OPEN SESSION AS AT 12.25PM

MOTION (Clr Hollman/Cir Woodcock) that the Board move out of Committes of the Whole
and resume the Ordinary meeting to consider the Executive Officer's report, in open
session, on the decisions made in the Committes of the Whole. CARRIED

ADOPTION OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE DECISIONS IN OPEN MEETING

MOTION (Cir Hollman/Clr Woodcock) that the report of the meeting of the Committes of
the Whole Board held on 28th Oct 2020 as advised to the Ordinary mesting, in open
session, by the Execuilve Officer, the motions be adopted as follows:

[tem 9{a)— Management of the Aidines Serviges Contracts Update

MOTION (Clr Woedecock/Clr Hollman) that

1. The revised Alr Link Monday/Thursday/Friday schedule on the Bubbo-Bourke route be
approved;

2. The revised Air Link Monday/Tuesday/Friday schedule on the Dubbo-Walgett route be
approved;

3.Tha revised Air Link Monday/Friday ‘tag' schedule on the Lightning Rldge route be
approved,

4, The use, as required, of a Cessna €310, 2 englne aircraft, as pronosed by Air Link on
each of the existing Air Link routes be approved on the basls of their being no additional
costs to the FNWJO;

5. The revised fare structure for all existing Alr Link soutes be approved as follows:
Community Fare - $150, Discount Fare - $250 & Base Fare - $350 as detailed in the
report of the Executive Officar;

6. Air Link be advised thai FNWJQ does not support their proposals for the operation by
Air Link of a Dubbo-Cobar roite;

7. The proposed schedule, farae changes and fare allocations for the Fly Pelican Sydney-
Cobar route as identified in the Executive Officer’s report below be approved

“(1) Fly Pelican's request to have 4 sarvices and add Monday to Tuesday, Wednesday
and Friday;

(2} Fly Pelican’s reguest fo have fares changed by:
a) Lifting the geographical restrictlons so they can be used by non locals;
b) Make mors local fares avallable on Mondays and Fridays by increasing the
€ seats o 10 available;
¢) Change Fares:
i. Base Fare ex GST cne way o $599;
ii. Discount Fare 1 ex GST one way io $4988;
ili. Change Discount Fare 2 ex GST one way o $299;
iv. Change Local Fare ex GST one way fo $199;
d) Adjust the Fare Allocatlons as per the tables:
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SYD - CAZ [cument farel Monday | Tuesday | Wednesday | Friday
gllocation]

Base Fare [3 seais]

Discount Fare 1 [4 seate] | 2 2 2z 2
Discount Fara 2 [6 seata] | 6 18 6 G
Lacal Fare [6 seats] 10 0 10 10
CAZ- 5YD Monday | Tuesday | Wednasday | Friday
feurrent fare allecation)

Base Fare [3 saals]

Riscount Fara 1 [4 seats] | 2 2 2 2
Digcount Fare 2 [G segts] | 6 g 18 B
Local Farae [G seats] 10 10 a 10

e) Keep the current Terms of the local fare in place ie all remaining seats
unsald within 24 hours of departure will be available at the Local Fare class
pricing {$199)"

8. The above revised Alr LInk flight schedules/ fares and the above Fly Pellcan schadules,
fares and fare aliocations he undertaken on the basis of them being a 4-month trial
with these matters belng again reviewed by the Board thereafter;

9. Hickson's Lawyers be requested o negotiate with Fly Pelican in respect of the Sydney
— Cobar route regarding an improved price regime for daily fllghts for a report to an
Extraordinary meeting of the Board in November 2020,

10.The Exacutlve Officer liaise with Hickson's Lawyers to iake the necessary action to
implemaent the varicus contractual changes, as a result of the Boards decisions, with a
view to such changes being made as socn as practicable.

11.The matter of local fares be further consldsered by the Board as part of i#s discussions
following the upcoming 4-month frial of revised schedules and fares.

12.The FNWJO to not financially contribute to the proposed television marketing

campaign being considerad by Airdink and Fly Pelican.

13.The FNWJO Executive Officer to liaise with both airlines with a vlew io the

development and implementation of marketing campaigns, at the Airfines expense,
hoting that as part of the coniract with the aldlnes, there is already an allocation for
‘marketing and promofion' under each routes’ fixed costs, with advice as fo such
campaigns being provided to the Board at the Extraordinary meeting propcsed for
November 2020, CARRIED

AGENDA ITEM 15 — NEXT MEETING DATE

That the Executive Officer liaise with the Chairperson to determine a date/time of the next
mesting and attendees advised accordingly in November & December

The meefing ¢closed at 12.30pm,

THIS IS PAGE % OF THE MINLITES OF THE OQRDIMARY BOARD MEETING OF THE FAR NORTH WEST JOINT CREANISATION HELD ON
WEDNESDAY 28t QOCTCQRER 2020

...................................................................................
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Transpart for NSW

NSW

GOVERNMENT

Fixing Local Roads program

Fact sheet - Round 2

What is the Fixing Local Roads program?

The Fixing Local Roads Program is a $500 milllon
MEW Government program over five vears, to
assist councils in reducing their local council roads
malntenance backloo.

In 2020, the Australian Government committed an
additional $121 millien te the Fixking Local Roads
pragram to support econamic activity in regioral
NEW, This jncreased the tatal funding for the Fixing
Local Roads pregram to $6971 milllon,

How does the program work?

Fixing Local Roads is a grant-based program

where councils can apply for funding to repalr,
patch, maintain and seal priority local council

roads. Applications can be made for a 100 per carit
contribution fram the NSW Governmeant for specific
works, Councils are encouraged to co-contribute to
any projects with funds or in-kind contributions.

What works can be funded?

Eligible projects are required to meet a serles of criterla
set out In the Program Guidelines: Projects must be;

« |ocated on a local read managed by council,
{MNote: Regional and Crown roads are not eliglizle)

+ |dentifiable as a priority or important local road for
the local government area ar region

= deliverable within 24 months of notification from
Transport for NSW

+ malhtenance-driven such as repalting, patching,
maintaining or sealing existing roads.

What are ineligible projects?

Ineligible projects include;

« widening shoulders

= buliding new roads

= any preject on the State or Regional road network

« any project on private roads

Funding is specific to projects and not transferable.

The total NSW road network |s over

180,000km In length, with approximately

BO per cent classified as Lor.al Roacls.

Local councilsare currantly ree 5
waElrtalin

H '\'.“' re

local roacs),

Maore information an the Fiking Local Reads program |s svailable online or vie email

W nswroadsiworkefhinalocalronds

Mérmmibiar 2020
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Who is eligible for this funding?

The 83 councils listed on the Eligibility List are 2ligible
to apply, as well as the Unincorporated Far West and
Laord Howe |sland,

How do councils apply for funding?

infotmation and supporting documents can be
obtalned frorn the Fixing Local Roads web page www.
rms.nsw.aov.au/fixinglocalroads.

Relevant information around criteria, key dates and

how to apply can be obtained from the Fixing Local
Roads Program Guidelines.

Applications must be submitted online via the
SmartyGrants system,

What is the deadline for completing
works?

All works must be complated within twi vears of
receiving funding to ensure local communities receive
the benefits sooner.

How will applications be assessed?

The Fixing Local Roads Program adopts a muiti-
criteria assessrment of every application, Projects will
be selected for funding based on the ability to deliver
against the following objectives:

* Promotes reglonal economic activity
+ Enhances regional connectivity and sustainability
« Enables a safer regional road networke

Each project will be subject to a comparative
assessment of both mernt and prioritisation attributes
to enable selection of projects which meet the
program cbjectives and contain particular attributes
which may warrant higher consideration.

Merit assessment

The application will seek detailed responses from
council to guestions which will enable the evaluation
panel to make a determination of the following:

« [Does the project meet the objectives of the
program?
= Has the application provided measurable

justification and/or evidence to demonstrate
alighment to the program cbjectives?

« Are the cost, schedule, risk and assumptions of the
project delivery well documented?

« Arethere special considerations eq, drought
hardship. connecting Indigenous Communitias?

* |5 there a co-contribution, or other funding source to
optimise community cutcomes?

Some docurmentation miay be reguired in support of
the applications, including photographic evidence,
detalled project develogment information and asset
managemeant plans,

Merit-based questions will be assessed on a score of 1
(poor) to 3 (very good), The scores will be combined
into a single multi-criteria score based on a weighting
for each critetia

All works rnust be complated within two vears of
receiving funding to ensure local communities are
benefiting sooner,

Projects which are able to commence in 20/21 financial
year will be prioritised during the assessment period.

The evaluation criteria and corresponding weighting
are outlined on page 2.

Prioritisation assessment

Tevsupport Transport for NSW in being able to
distinguish and prioritise the applications, the
application form includes a number of questicns to
enablea batter understanding of which projects may
warrant higher consideratioh,

Application questions require applicants to provide
spacific iInfarmation and/or select from a range of
attributes specific to the road and/or the project
Attributes informing prioritisation include:

« job crestion and local investment

= road condition and function

= Road Infrastructure Risk Rating

= frequency of closures due to weather/heavy
haulage damage.

Responses to prioritisation guestions will generate a
score bebtween 1-3 and will contribute to the ovearall
evaluation score.

Round 1 projects

Councils may choose to resubmit unsuccessiul
projects from round one if they are able to start
projects in the 2020/21 financial vear

Due to the changed application requirements; councils
will need ta resubmit through the SmartyGrants
systern to provide the evaluation tearn with the
necassary information to progress thraugh the
assessment process,

Mare information on the Fixing Local Rosds program s available anline o via amall

W pawiroads werk/ Tinalecaloads

MNovsmilssr 2020
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Program Praogram Criteria
Outcomes ‘Objectlves Waeighting
Promates reglonsl
development in nsal 5%
Outcome 1: At
The program,
pramates reglonal
goonomic sobivity!  cuppors families in
rural apd remate arsas B
Irmpironsea- L resishility
of the local moad 1544
mtri
Cutcome:2:-
Tﬁ&'nmgihim AsEeaty counchy to
ol L '.l;igllﬂﬂﬂ| sustainably manage 0%
I thalr assets
connectivityand
sustainabiiity
Imiprovas the resilience J
of the [ocal raad 1%
netweark
Dritcome 30
The program Impraves Incal moad )
enables’a sater safty A
reglonal road.
natwork
Rﬂﬂm.ihl.ﬂ.ﬂﬂ'u" mlh"ih‘: ard ntegrity -
of the project %
Peliverabliity apolication
=t Haurdsh
SPecia I
Considorathons Capnects indionnals 5k
' omjrinities
Co-contribution / .
et hilire, Contritauion from
othar funding cotnsil or ather gty i
soRirce

Evaluatien Criteria

The project s shavel resdy commencing in FY 20021

The profect will genemte (ocs! [obs for reglonal and ruesl cormmunities and suopars
community connections which further enshle job genemtion and econamic grawth,
o froiaht, tacinsrm, rdustry

The project enables improved access To oné or mare of the follewiris

= Pwplth carg

+ pducabion

= ‘gecessto shckE and community. anefits

The projact Wil signibcantly Improve the current becad raad canditian

The project forms part of an exitting strategic asset management strategy ancd will
dirgetly minimises ongoing meactivé maintonance cosks :

The project supports mamiznance of roads Impacted by harvesting of State Faregts,

The praject will Impresve the productivity of e local road fetwork by moucing
frequency of road closures. spead restrictions bulkdfing reaifience to natursl divasters
S athor eyt baavy vahicle damage.

The praject / proposed sobution coptribites to o safer road network

Application has sufficksnt detail o suppor tha credibility and integrily of the project
costé, scheduls, risks and assumptions:

Yes /. Me

The amicury of co-contribsition councll or a party sther than counell makes to
the promject

Funding limits

There is na limit to the tumber of project spplications
which can be submitted to the Fixing Local Roads
program each round. Councils rmay apply far upto 100
par cent of the project value,

There is a maxiraum funding limit of $5 million of state
contribution per council per application. Applicants
can apply for up to 100 per cent of the value of

the project, but co-contributions from council are
strongly encowraged and will be considered ralevant
to council's funding position. A general rule of thumb
is & minimum co-contribution of 25 per cent. Non-
compliant proposals may be considered.

Reporting and payments

Ceuncils will be required to report on the planning,
progress and completion of projects and provids
supporting information. Grant funding will be
millestone based with an inftial payment of 70 per cent
at thie start of the project and the ramaining balance
af project cosks, up to 30 per cant of the grant fund,
upon submission of a Final Project Report and the
satisfactory completion of the project

Timing of notifications

Transpaort for NSW is targeting the release of
notifications to succassful councils in early 2021 to aid
in development of local government budgets,

Councils will have twia wesks fram receiving a
notification letter to enter Into the funding agresment.

We encourage councils to consider making
arrangements to enable approvals outside of regular
council meeting dates If raguirad.

Contact detalls

Questions about Fixing Local Roads including
eligibility and the application process can be emalled
to fixinglocalroads@transport.nsw.govau

Mare |hormmtion an the Flxing Locs! Roads program s avallable online or via emall

Mevermtiar 2020




Frequently Asked Questions

What if the preject has already commenced?

Councils are encouraged to nominate projects which
are priorty upgrades wiich have not vet commenced.
Projects which have commenced are ineligible for
consideration as funding cannot be retrospectively
applied.

Can councils apply for multiple projects?

There Is no limit to the number of project applications
which can be submitted to the Fixing Local Roads
program each round, Counclls may apply for up to 100
per cent of the project value.

There s a maximum funding limit of %5 million of state
contribution per councll per apglication, Applicants
can apply for up to 100 per cent of the value of

the praject, but co-contributions fram council ars
strangly encouraged and will be considered relevant
to couneil's funcling position. A general rule of thumb
is a minimum co-contritution of 25 per cent. Nan-
compliant proposals may be considered.

If | submit multiple project applications, can |
submit them in order of priority?

Each project will be assessed against the merit and
prioritisation criteria separately, The outcome of the
combined assessment will enable Transport for NSW
to priofitise projects to be funded.

How do | use SmartyGrants?

SmartyGranks Is a secure, online portal which provides
a platform for submission and assessment of project
applications. It is used by rmany government agencies
I the management of grant funds,

Councils will need to create a SmartyGrants login to
access and lodge subimissions.

Wl there be future rounds of Fixing Local Roads?

The Fixing Local Roads program will be deliverad
over 5 years, with mare than $240 million awarded for
Roind 1.

Future rounds rmay be announced at a later date

Is there a minimum co-contribution?

Councils which have a co-contribution of egual to,
or greater than 25 per cent will be eligible to receive
comesponding points during the merit assessment.

Councils who are experencing hardship can outline
inaligibility in mesting this evaluation criterla.

What happens if the total project costs less than
the funding that has been granted?

Transport for NSW will release 70 per cent of the
total grant upon execution of the funding agreemant
letters. Upan completion of the project, councils will
be required to submit a Project Completion Report
detailing the total project costs,

Transport for NSW will release the remaining balance
of project costs up to 30 per cant of the arant valuse,

What if councll has applied for funding under
altemate grant programs?

In these instances counclls should apply for the

full funding ameount and note that co-funding

has been applied for. If successful in the alternate
program, councils should notify Transpart for NSW

of the amount of co-funding received. Notifications
relating to the program can be made thrauah the
SrnartyGrants portal or the relevant Transport for NSW
Local Government Manager,

More information on the Fixing Locs! Roads 'orogram [5avaiiable onllfe or via émaEll

W nswraadewark/fixinalomiroatls

Mewpmbesr F020
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